
           

SAPULPA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
CITY HALL - 425 EAST DEWEY AVENUE

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 2ND FLOOR
7:00 P.M., MONDAY, APRIL 20, 2020

Notice is hereby given that the Mayor and City Council of the City of Sapulpa, Oklahoma, will
meet in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on the 20th day of April, 2020, in the Council Chambers,
Sapulpa City Hall,425 East Dewey Avenue, Sapulpa, Oklahoma, with the agenda for said meeting
as follows:
  
MEETING PROCEDURE: Comments from the public are welcome at two different times during
the course of the meeting.  A Sign in Sheet is located at the back of the room. Those wishing to
address the City Council are to sign in prior to the start of the meeting and identify the item(s) they
wish to address. Comments concerning items scheduled on the Agenda will be heard immediately
following the presentation by staff or petitioner. Comments concerning items not scheduled on the
Agenda will only be heard under the Public Comments section. The City Council will not act on
any matter discussed in the Public Comments section and will act on the Item on the Agenda after
all comments have been heard. 
 

Please come to the podium when the Mayor calls your name.
 

 - AGENDA -
           

1. NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE AND/OR VIDEO CONFERENCE
PARTICIPATION:

  

 

A. The following City Councilors will remotely appear and participate in the regular
meeting by telephonic connection:

John Anderson, Vickie Beyer, Bruce Bledsoe, Marty Cummins, Wes Galloway,
Carla Gunn, Craig Henderson, Louis Martin, Jr., Hugo Naifeh, John Suggs.

  

 

B. All Council members may choose to appear physically and participate in the meeting
at the City Council chambers if desired.

  

 

C. The meeting is open and accessible to the public by telephonic connection at
#1-346-248-7799; Meeting ID: 967 5444 2312.  In addition, the meeting is open and
accessible for public participation by on site appearance at the Sapulpa City Council
Chamber, at 425 E Dewey Avenue, Sapulpa, Oklahoma.

  

 

2. CALL TO ORDER.   

 

3. INVOCATION.   

 

4. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.   

 

1 of 4 

  



 

5. ROLL CALL.   

 

6. MINUTES.   

 

A. Consider approving the minutes of the April 6, 2020, regular city council meeting.
 

B. Consider approving the minutes of the April 2, 2020, emergency city council meeting. 
 

7. APPOINTMENTS, AWARDS, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS.   

 

8. CONSENT ITEMS: All matters under “Consent” are considered by the City
Council to be routine and will be enacted by one motion. Any City Council member
may, however, remove an item from consent by request.

  

 

A. Consider approving claims in the amount of $498,528.34
 

B. Consider approving prepaid claims in the amount of $2,136.84
 

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS.   

 

10. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT.   

 

11. ADMINISTRATION.   

 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding a Resolution of the City of Sapulpa,
Oklahoma and the Sapulpa Municipal Authority amending the FY 2019-2020 annual
budget by increasing revenue and appropriations in the Stormwater Management Fund
in the amount of $11,385.00 to recognize reimbursements for damage to the sewer vac
truck.

 

B. Discussion and possible action regardinga Resolution of the City of Sapulpa, Oklahoma
and the Sapulpa Municipal Authority amending the FY 2019-2020 annual budget by
increasing revenue and appropriations in the Water and Sewer Sales Tax Fund in the
amount of $3,900.00 to recognize reimbursements for damage to a fire hydrant.

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a straight line of credit "SLOC")
from American Heritage Bank for $550,000.00 to provide interim short-term funding
for 2020 GO bond projects, and authorization for the City Manager to execute all
necessary and related documentation. 

 

D. Discussion and possible action regarding a Resolution of the City of Sapulpa,

2 of 4 

  



D. Discussion and possible action regarding a Resolution of the City of Sapulpa,
Oklahoma amending the FY 2019-2020 annual budget by increasing revenue and
appropriations in the GO Bond Construction Fund to recognize proceeds from a Line of
Credit issued by American Heritage Bank in the amount of $550,000.00 for interim
short-term funding for projects.

 

E. Discussion and possible action regarding award of Bid No. COS-10079 for the
Replacement of Roof Top HVAC Units (Sapulpa Police Department) Project, as
follows: (i) rejecting apparent low bid of $254,480.00 from Air Conditioning Service
Inc., for failure to meet bid specifications, and (ii) awarding bid to Powers Mechanical
Service, as being the lowest, responsive and responsible bidder, in the amount of
$256,530.11, and authorize the Mayor/Chairman to execute all contract documents
related thereto.

 

F. Discussion and possible action regarding Agreement for Professional Services with
Olsson, Inc. dba Oschner Hare & Hare the Olsson Studio ("Olsson") for creation of a
Downtown Sapulpa Master Plan in the amount of $197,000.00.

 

G. Discussion and possible action regarding modified Agreement with ESRI to expand the
City's current licensing to provide ArcGIS Mapping for the City of Sapulpa at an
additive cost amount of $4,030.00.

 

H. Discussion and possible action regarding a Disaster Assistance Agreement for Major
Disasters between the State of Oklahoma and the City of Sapulpa for disaster assistance
resulting from Oklahoma DR 4530 COVID-19 and authorize the Mayor Pro Tem to
execute all necessary documents.

 

12. NEW BUSINESS.  (Items that were not known about at the time of posting the
agenda.)

  

 

13. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS FROM MAYOR, CITY COUNCIL, CITY
MANAGER, OR CITY ATTORNEY.

  

 

14. PUBLIC COMMENTS. The purpose of the Public Comments Section of the
Agenda is for members of the public to speak to the City Council on any subject not
scheduled on the Regular Agenda. City Council shall make no decision or action,
except to direct the City Manager to take action, or to schedule the matter for City
Council discussion at a later date. 

Please come to the podium when the Mayor calls your name and keep your
comments as brief as possible.

  

 

15. EXECUTIVE SESSION.   

 

16. ADJOURNMENT.   

 

Posted this 17th day of April, 2020 at or before 5:30 p.m., at the Sapulpa City Hall, 425 East

3 of 4 

  



Posted this 17th day of April, 2020 at or before 5:30 p.m., at the Sapulpa City Hall, 425 East
Dewey Avenue, Sapulpa, Oklahoma.

Name:  Amy Hoehner
Title:    Legal Assistant

 

4 of 4 

  



AGENDA ITEM

   
City Council Regular 6. A.        
Meeting Date: April 20, 2020  
Submitted By: Shirley Burzio, City Clerk
Department: City Clerk
Presented By: 

SUBJECT:
Consider approving the minutes of the April 6, 2020, regular city council meeting.

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDATION:

Attachments
minutes.04-06-2020 city



CITY OF SAPULPA, OKLAHOMA
COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS

Meeting of April 6, 2020
 

The City Council of Sapulpa, Oklahoma, met in regular session Monday, April 6, 2020, at
7:00 o'clock P.M. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 425 East Dewey Avenue, Sapulpa,
Oklahoma.
 

Present: Louis Martin, Jr., Mayor Pro Tem   
  Marty Cummins, Vice-Mayor Pro Tem   
  John Anderson, Councilor   
  Vicki Beyer, Councilor   
  Bruce Bledsoe, Councilor   
  Wes Galloway, Councilor   
  Carla Gunn, Councilor   
  Craig Henderson, Councilor   
  Hugo Naifeh, Councilor   
  John Suggs, Councilor   

Staff
Present:

City Manager Joan Riley; City Treasurer / Finance
Director Pam Vann; City Attorney David Widdoes; City
Clerk Shirley Burzio; Public Works Director Steve Hardt;
Urban Development Director Nikki Howard 

 

 

               

1. NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE PARTICIPATION:
 

A. The following City Councilors remotely appeared and participated in the regular
meeting by telephonic connection:

Vickie Beyer, Marty Cummins, Carla Gunn, John Suggs.
 

B. All Council members may choose to appear physically and participate in the
meeting at the City Council chambers if desired.

 

C. The meeting was open and accessible to the public by telephonic connection
at #1-346-248-7799; Meeting ID: 460 229 466.  In addition, the meeting
was open and accessible for public participation by on site appearance at
the Sapulpa City Council Chamber, at 425 E Dewey Avenue, Sapulpa,
Oklahoma.

 

2. INVOCATION.

The invocation was given by Rev. Mike Peters, Canyon Road Baptist Church.
 

Sapulpa City Council April 6, 2020                                         Page 1 

  



3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

Mayor Louis Martin led the Pledge of Allegiance
 

4. MINUTES.
 

A. Consider approval of minutes for the March 16, 2020, regular city council
meeting.

  

 

B. Consider approval of minutes for the March 23, 2020, special city council
meeting.

  

 
  Motion was made by Hugo Naifeh, second by Craig Henderson to approve the

minutes of the March 16, 2020, regular city council meeting and the March 23,
2020, special city council meeting. 

  ROLL CALL VOTE -  AYE: Louis Martin, Jr., Marty Cummins, John
Anderson, Vicki Beyer, Bruce Bledsoe, Wes
Galloway, Carla Gunn, Craig Henderson, Hugo
Naifeh, John Suggs 

10 - 0 MOTION CARRIED

 

5. APPOINTMENTS, AWARDS, PRESENTATIONS, AND PROCLAMATIONS.
 

A. Discuss and consider approving a proclamation proclaiming the week of April
12 through 18, 2020, as National Public Safety Telecommunications Week in
the City of Sapulpa.

  

 

B. Discuss and consider approving proclamation proclaiming week of April 12
through 18, 2020, to be National Animal Control Officers Appreciation Week in
the City of Sapulpa.

  

 
  Motion was made by Craig Henderson, second by Wes Galloway to

approve proclamations proclaiming the week of April 12 through 18, 2020, as
National Public Safety Telecommunications Week and the week of April 12
through 18, 2020, as National Animal Control Officers Appreciation Week in the
City of Sapulpa. 

  ROLL CALL VOTE -  AYE: Louis Martin, Jr., Marty Cummins, John
Anderson, Vicki Beyer, Bruce Bledsoe, Wes
Galloway, Carla Gunn, Craig Henderson, Hugo
Naifeh, John Suggs 

10 - 0 MOTION CARRIED

 

Sapulpa City Council April 6, 2020                                         Page 2 

  



           

6. CONSENT ITEMS:
 

A. Consider approving pre-paid claims in the amount of $17,277.35   

 

B. Consider approving claims in the amount of $170,650.15   

 
  Motion was made by John Anderson, second by Wes Galloway to approve

pre-paid claims in the amount of $17,277.35 and claims in the amount of
$170,650.15. 

  ROLL CALL VOTE -  AYE: Louis Martin, Jr., Marty Cummins, John
Anderson, Vicki Beyer, Bruce Bledsoe, Wes
Galloway, Carla Gunn, Craig Henderson, Hugo
Naifeh, John Suggs 

10 - 0 MOTION CARRIED

 

7. PUBLIC HEARINGS.
 

A. Consider conducting a public hearing to receive input and recommendations on
community needs for the City of Sapulpa as a member of the Tulsa County
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Urban County.

A public hearing was held.  There were no written or oral comments made to
the council.   

  

 

8. ADMINISTRATION.
 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding an ordinance of the City of Sapulpa,
Oklahoma, amending Part 13, Public Safety, Chapter 4, Civil Emergency
Management, by adding new Section 13-411, Violation and Penalties;
providing for an effective date; repealing all ordinances or parts of ordinances
in conflict with this ordinance; and providing that if any part or parts of this
ordinance are held invalid or ineffective, the remaining portions shall not be
affected; and declaring an emergency. (Ordinance No. 2832)

  

 
  Motion was made by Bruce Bledsoe, second by Hugo Naifeh to approve the

adoption of said ordinance. 
  ROLL CALL VOTE -  AYE: Louis Martin, Jr., Marty Cummins, John

Anderson, Vicki Beyer, Bruce Bledsoe, Wes
Galloway, Carla Gunn, Craig Henderson, Hugo
Naifeh, John Suggs 

10 - 0 MOTION CARRIED

 
  Motion was made by Bruce Bledsoe, second by Craig Henderson to approve

the adoption and passage of the emergency clause. 
  ROLL CALL VOTE -  AYE: Louis Martin, Jr., Marty Cummins, John

Sapulpa City Council April 6, 2020                                         Page 3 

  



  ROLL CALL VOTE -  AYE: Louis Martin, Jr., Marty Cummins, John
Anderson, Vicki Beyer, Bruce Bledsoe, Wes
Galloway, Carla Gunn, Craig Henderson, Hugo
Naifeh, John Suggs 

10 - 0 MOTION CARRIED

 

B. Discussion and possible action regarding a resolution relating to
$13,000,000.00 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2020A; fixing the amount of
bonds to mature each year, fixing the time and place the bonds are to be sold,
and authorizing the Mayor to give notice of said sale as required by law. 
(Resolution No. 4620)

  

 
  Motion was made by Hugo Naifeh, second by Bruce Bledsoe to approve the

adoption of said resolution. 
  ROLL CALL VOTE -  AYE: Louis Martin, Jr., Marty Cummins, Vicki Beyer,

Bruce Bledsoe, Wes Galloway, Carla Gunn,
Craig Henderson, Hugo Naifeh, John Suggs 

NAY: John Anderson 
9 - 1 MOTION CARRIED

 

C. Discussion and possible action regarding a resolution relating to $2,000,000.00
General Obligation Limited Tax Bonds, Taxable Series 2020; fixing the amount
of bonds to mature each year, fixing the time and place the bonds are to be
sold, and authorizing the Mayor to give notice of said sale as required by law. 
(Resolution No. 4621)

  

 
  Motion was made by Hugo Naifeh, second by Bruce Bledsoe to approve the

adoption of said resolution. 
  ROLL CALL VOTE -  AYE: Louis Martin, Jr., Marty Cummins, John

Anderson, Vicki Beyer, Bruce Bledsoe, Wes
Galloway, Carla Gunn, Craig Henderson, Hugo
Naifeh, John Suggs 

10 - 0 MOTION CARRIED

 

D. Discussion and possible action regarding recommendation to award bid to
Crossland Heavy Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $3,759,464.00 for the
Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Project, and authoring the Mayor
Pro Tem to execute all contract documents related thereto.  The budgeted
amount for the project is $3,817,650.00.

  

 
  Motion was made by John Anderson, second by Wes Galloway to award the

bid for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvements Project to Crossland
Heavy Contractors, Inc., in the amount of $3,759,464.00 and to authorize the
Mayor Pro Tem to execute all contract documents related thereto.  

  ROLL CALL VOTE -  AYE: Louis Martin, Jr., Marty Cummins, John

Sapulpa City Council April 6, 2020                                         Page 4 

  



  ROLL CALL VOTE -  AYE: Louis Martin, Jr., Marty Cummins, John
Anderson, Vicki Beyer, Bruce Bledsoe, Wes
Galloway, Carla Gunn, Craig Henderson, Hugo
Naifeh, John Suggs 

10 - 0 MOTION CARRIED

 

E. Discussion and possible action regarding recommendation to approve Change
Order #1 in the amount of $149,335.00 to the contract with Cherokee Pride
Construction for the North Hickory Road Project. 

  

 
  Motion was made by Hugo Naifeh, second by John Anderson to approve

Change Order #1, in the amount of $149,335.00, to the contract with Cherokee
Pride Construction for the North Hickory Road Project.  

  ROLL CALL VOTE -  AYE: Louis Martin, Jr., Marty Cummins, John
Anderson, Vicki Beyer, Bruce Bledsoe, Wes
Galloway, Carla Gunn, Craig Henderson, Hugo
Naifeh, John Suggs 

10 - 0 MOTION CARRIED

 

F. Discussion and possible action to change, revise and/or amend the
third proclamation of the City of Sapulpa, Oklahoma, further declaring state of
emergency, dated April 2, 2020, from the COVID-19 public health crisis.

  

 
  Motion was made by Bruce Bledsoe, second by Hugo Naifeh to maintain the

current proclamation as is and with no changes. 
  ROLL CALL VOTE -  AYE: Louis Martin, Jr., Marty Cummins, John

Anderson, Vicki Beyer, Bruce Bledsoe, Wes
Galloway, Carla Gunn, Craig Henderson, Hugo
Naifeh 

NAY: John Suggs 
9 - 1 MOTION CARRIED

 

9. PUBLIC COMMENTS.

Mr. Troy Bundy, owner of property located at 519 West Dewey Avenue, told
the council the property had sustained tornado damage.  The city abated the
property, and ordered that the property be demolished.   He requested a
continuance, so he could deal with the insurance company.   

Mr. Bundy was advised that the council could not take any action on his
request.     

 

Sapulpa City Council April 6, 2020                                         Page 5 

  



           

10. ADJOURNMENT.
 
  Motion was made by John Anderson, second by Wes Galloway to adjourn the

meeting. 
  ROLL CALL VOTE -  AYE: Louis Martin, Jr., Marty Cummins, John Anderson,

Vicki Beyer, Bruce Bledsoe, Wes Galloway, Carla
Gunn, Craig Henderson, Hugo Naifeh, John Suggs 

10 - 0 MOTION CARRIED

 
 

  ______________________________
Mayor

Attest:

________________________________________
City Clerk

  

Sapulpa City Council April 6, 2020                                         Page 6 

  



AGENDA ITEM

   
City Council Regular 6. B.        
Meeting Date: April 20, 2020  
Submitted By: Shirley Burzio, City Clerk
Department: City Clerk
Presented By: 

SUBJECT:
Consider approving the minutes of the April 2, 2020, emergency city council meeting. 

BACKGROUND:

RECOMMENDATION:

Attachments
minutes.04-02-2020 city emergency



CITY OF SAPULPA, OKLAHOMA
COUNCIL PROCEEDINGS

Emergency Meeting of April 2, 2020
 

The City Council of Sapulpa, Oklahoma, met in an emergency session Thursday, April 2,
2020, at 7:00 o'clock P.M. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 425 East Dewey Avenue,
Sapulpa, Oklahoma.
 

Present: Louis Martin, Jr., Mayor Pro Tem   
  Marty Cummins, Vice-Mayor Pro Tem   
  John Anderson, Councilor   
  Vicki Beyer, Councilor   
  Bruce Bledsoe, Councilor   
  Wes Galloway, Councilor   
  Carla Gunn, Councilor   
  Craig Henderson, Councilor   
  Hugo Naifeh, Councilor   
  John Suggs, Councilor   

Staff
Present:

City Manager Joan Riley; City Attorney David Widdoes;
City Clerk Shirley Burzio; 

 

 

               

1. NOTICE OF TELECONFERENCE PARTICIPATION:
 

A. The following City Councilors appeared remotely and participated in the
emergency meeting by telephonic connection:

John Anderson, Bruce Bledsoe, Marty Cummins, Carla Gunn, and John Suggs.
 

B. The council chambers was open for public participation.
 

2. ADMINISTRATION.
 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding Third Emergency Proclamation
amending, and/or revising prior Mayoral declarations of emergency from the
COVID-19 crisis.

City Attorney David Widdoes told the council that Governor Stitt had declared a
catastrophic health emergency for the State of Oklahoma earlier in the
day (April 2, 2020) because of the COVID-19 virus pandemic.    In order to
protect the health and safety of the City of Sapulpa and its inhabitants, and to
preserve the peace, and to provide civil defense and emergency functions, an
emergency meeting of the city council was necessary.  

  

 

Sapulpa City Council April 2, 2020                                         Page 1 

  



 
  Motion was made John Anderson, seconded by Vicki Beyer to approve the

adoption of the proclamation. 
  ROLL CALL VOTE -  AYE: Louis Martin, Jr., Marty Cummins, Vicki Beyer,

Bruce Bledsoe, Wes Galloway, Carla Gunn,
Craig Henderson, Hugo Naifeh, John Suggs 

9 - 0 MOTION CARRIED

 
  Due to audio difficulties, the vote cast by Councilor John Anderson via

telephonic connection could not be heard by the council, staff and audience. 
 

3. ADJOURNMENT.
 
  Motion was made Wes Galloway, seconded by Hugo Naifeh to adjourn the

meeting.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 

  ______________________________
Mayor

Attest:

________________________________________
City Clerk

  

Sapulpa City Council April 2, 2020                                         Page 2 

  



 

   
    Consent Agenda    8. A.        

City Council Regular
Meeting Date: April 20, 2020  
Submitted For:  Hailey Sharp, Accounts Payable Clerk 
Submitted By: Amber Fisher, Accounts Payable Clerk

SUBJECT:
Consider approving claims in the amount of $498,528.34

Attachments
Claims List 4/20/2020



 4/16/2020 10:10 AM                  P U R C H A S E   O R D E R   C L A I M   R E G I S T E R                            PAGE:   1

FUND: 10 - GENERAL FUND                                                                                             SUMMARY REPORT

P.O.#     VENDOR #   NAME                       SUMMARY DESCRIPTION        DATE      INVOICE                    AMOUNT

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

127498    99-10031   THE SPYGLASS GROUP, LLC    COST RECOVERY/PHONES        4/2020   1/31/2020 127498          1,467.48

127451    99-10143   PERDUE, BRANDON, FIELDER, CCOLLECTION SERVICES         4/2020   3/1-3/31/20 127451        6,549.66

129882    99-10159   LAWRENCE COUNTY NEWSPAPERS,PUBL ORD/RESOLUTION         4/2020   24217                        85.35

130001    99-10159   LAWRENCE COUNTY NEWSPAPERS,ADD FOR INCINERATOR         4/2020   24218                        70.40

129022    99-10160   MERRIFIELD OFFICE SOLUTIONSJANITORIAL SUPPLIES         4/2020   188806-001                   31.99

129391    99-10160   MERRIFIELD OFFICE SOLUTIONSPENS, PAPER, FOLDERS        4/2020   191932-001                   53.52

130010    99-10160   MERRIFIELD OFFICE SOLUTIONSJANITORIAL SUPPLIES         4/2020   0191468-001                 272.21

129795    99-10252   CECIL COX ENTERPRISES      FRONT END ALIGNMENT #2719   4/2020   3057614                      59.95

129832    99-103     ONG                        ONG/FEBRUARY 2020           4/2020   6906 3/3/2020             2,901.48

129578    99-10315   CINTAS CORPORATION NO.2    COVERALLS & GLOVES          4/2020   5016261679                  760.90

129592    99-10315   CINTAS CORPORATION NO.2    CHEMICAL SPLASH GOGGLES     4/2020   9084759675                  131.24

129555    99-10355   CIRCLE C CONSULTING LLC    20 CASES OF GLOVES          4/2020   2366                      1,257.00

127465    99-10395   AUBREY WEATHERFORD         WEBSITE/FACEBOOK            4/2020   SAP0420                     250.00

129223    99-10488   ADMIRAL EXPRESS LLC        PAPER TOWELS                4/2020   2095955                     447.36

127454    99-10547   BEASLEY TECHNOLOGY INC     IT SERVICES/ANTI VIRUS      4/2020   COR-116809                   92.50

128090    99-10547   BEASLEY TECHNOLOGY INC     MTHLY SEC/MONIT/STREET      4/2020   COR-116810                   92.50

129829    99-10547   BEASLEY TECHNOLOGY INC     WIFI PART/ANNUAL            4/2020   COR-116843                   50.00

129264    99-10555   WILLIAMS, JENNIFER         MEAL REIMB/JEN WILLIAMS     4/2020   2/4/2020 129264              14.00

127456    99-10695   ADVANCED COPIER SYSTEMS LLCCOPIER RENTAL               4/2020   IN9253                    1,356.07

127279    99-10774   TIMOTHY CHRISTOPHER PENDLEYYEARLY PEST CONTROL         4/2020   833015                      232.50

129594    99-10941   BEAR COMMUNICATIONS INC    RADIO INSPECTION            4/2020   5010130                     140.00

129216    99-10952   AMERICAN DOCUMENT SHREDDINGDOCUMENT SHREDDING          4/2020   106595                       32.50

126197    99-1206    REASOR'S INC.              STUDY SESSION GROCERIES     4/2020   5406 3/16/20                 16.16

128520    99-1206    REASOR'S INC.              FOOD FOR VALOR              4/2020   3812 3/16/2020               15.98

129273    99-1206    REASOR'S INC.              PRISONER FOOD               4/2020   3813 3/16/2020              312.60

127462A   99-133     INCOG                      ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP           4/2020   223391                    4,746.50

126934    99-161     CREEK COUNTY RURAL WATER #4SEWER BILL/STATION 4        4/2020   741 3/27/2020               128.50

128920    99-175     STANDARD DISTRIBUTING INC  SANITIZER FOR COVID-19      4/2020   401798                      176.79

129397    99-175     STANDARD DISTRIBUTING INC  84 CASES OF WATER           4/2020   401753                      129.00

129556    99-175     STANDARD DISTRIBUTING INC  TP/HAND SOAP/SANITIZER      4/2020   400488                      228.62

129880    99-175     STANDARD DISTRIBUTING INC  GLOVES FOR OFFICE STAFF     4/2020   402130                       13.50

127496    99-2576    OKLAHOMA MUNICIPAL LEAGUE ICERTIFICATION/PAM VANN      4/2020   2020 127496                  68.50

128916    99-2576    OKLAHOMA MUNICIPAL LEAGUE IADVERTISE/EMPLOYMENT        4/2020   075172                       10.00

129062    99-2576    OKLAHOMA MUNICIPAL LEAGUE IREQUIRED TRAINING/GUNN      4/2020   075110                       85.00

129069    99-2576    OKLAHOMA MUNICIPAL LEAGUE IREGISTRATION/BEYER          4/2020   075106                       85.00

129787    99-3707    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC    CONTROL ARM/STRUTS          4/2020   153-221309                  453.08

129789    99-3707    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC    BALL JOINT/BUSHINGS         4/2020   153-221471                   80.82

129794    99-3707    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC    FUEL PUMP UNIT# 2719        4/2020   153-223248                  130.98

129830    99-3822    TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC    FEES/ONLINE BILL PAY        4/2020   025-291829                    7.50

127464A   99-4183    UPTOWN SAPULPA ACTION, INC.ECONOMIC DEV SERVICES       4/2020   APR 2020 127464           2,500.00

127572    99-4269    CREEK COUNTY RURAL WTR #3  WATER AT THE RANGE          4/2020   33975 2/18/2020              24.00

129831    99-4700    COX COMMUNICATIONS         INTERNET/MARCH 2020         4/2020   1101 4/1/2020             8,012.57

129585    99-5046    GERALD L. PRICE            BATTERY                     4/2020   16827                       398.00

127011    99-6477    WEST PUBLISHING CORPORATIONINFO/DATABASE CHARGES       4/2020   842065172                   578.97

129589    99-7044    SAPULPA DRIVE IN PHARMACY IMUPIROCIN OINTMENT          4/2020   146629                       56.00

129394    99-7868    WESTLAKE HARDWARE INC      EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE       4/2020   8143151                     120.85

129586    99-7868    WESTLAKE HARDWARE INC      VAR SUPPLIES/EQUIP MAINT    4/2020   8143171                     171.38

129437    99-8016    NORTHERN SAFETY COMPANY  INSAFETY GLASSES              4/2020   903884497                   134.46

129561    99-8059    ACE AIR, INC.              REPAIR HEAT BLOWER MOTOR    4/2020   106191                      664.46

129577    99-8059    ACE AIR, INC.              THERMOSTAT STATION #3       4/2020   106409                      128.27



 4/16/2020 10:10 AM                  P U R C H A S E   O R D E R   C L A I M   R E G I S T E R                            PAGE:   2

FUND: 10 - GENERAL FUND                                                                                             SUMMARY REPORT

P.O.#     VENDOR #   NAME                       SUMMARY DESCRIPTION        DATE      INVOICE                    AMOUNT

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

129124    99-8074    SPECIAL OPS UNIFORMS, INC  UNIFORMS FOR NEW HIRES      4/2020   793452                      979.59

129679    99-8216    HILAND DAIRY FOODS CO.LLC  MILK FOR PRISONERS          4/2020   9065053                      22.00

130002    99-8381    NEWEGG.COM                 CABLE FOR NEW COMPUTER      4/2020   1302723685                   25.52

130006    99-8381    NEWEGG.COM                 SPEAKERS/HARD DRIVE         4/2020   1202855407                  100.05

128608    99-8434    FLEETCOR TECHNOLOGIES d/b/aFUEL& OIL/MARCH 2020        4/2020   NP58034300                  115.56

129788    99-8539    CROW BURLLNGAME COMPANY    BATTERY/UNIT0599            4/2020   106-33779                   110.16

129804    99-8630    CREEK COUNTY CLERK         FILING FEES                 4/2020   3/31/20 129804               40.00

126866    99-8817    DE LAGE LANDEN PUBLIC FINANMTHLY COPIER LEASE          4/2020   67478223                  2,327.00

126936    99-8817    DE LAGE LANDEN PUBLIC FINANKYOCERA PRINTER LEASE       4/2020   67471167                    150.00

124449    99-8846    ARLEDGE & ASSOCIATES, P.C. AUDIT SERVICES FY 18/19     4/2020   31990                     8,630.00

127497    99-9228    GOV'T FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOGFOA MEMBERSHIP DUES        4/2020   2020 127497                  25.00

126865    99-9288    ADVANCE ALARMS, INC        MTHLY ALARM CHARGES         4/2020   1831920                      25.00

128506    99-9288    ADVANCE ALARMS, INC        MTHLY ALARM MONITORING      4/2020   1835214                      25.00

129432    99-9666    OKLAHOMA KENWORTH dba MHC KREAR BRAKES/LADDER 1        4/2020   R00483700203791           2,837.34

126937    99-9859    VERIZON WIRELESS SERVICES LWIRELESS CHARGES            4/2020   9851343085                  800.20

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:               52,038.52

FUND: 20 - SMA-AUTHORITY FUND                                                                                       SUMMARY REPORT

129643    99-10074   CONTROL SYSTEM SOLUTIONS LLCELL SRVC/4 LIFT STATIONS   4/2020   20008                     1,675.00

127295    99-10143   PERDUE, BRANDON, FIELDER, CBAD DEBT COLLECTION         4/2020   3/1-3/31/2020                91.41

129754    99-10154   HAWKINS, INC               CHLORINE                    4/2020   4691372                   5,399.82

129791    99-10252   CECIL COX ENTERPRISES      2 TIRES/2008 DURANGO        4/2020   3057217                     384.58

129832    99-103     ONG                        ONG/FEBRUARY 2020           4/2020   6906 3/3/2020             2,463.44

127214    99-10302   LAMPTON WELDING SUPPLY CO, ACETYLENE GAS TANK RNTL     4/2020   949389                       18.85

127338A   99-10302   LAMPTON WELDING SUPPLY CO, HELIUM & TANK RENTAL        4/2020   949390                       30.20

129642    99-10302   LAMPTON WELDING SUPPLY CO, REPLACE CUTTING TORCH       4/2020   4956965                     270.40

127465    99-10395   AUBREY WEATHERFORD         WEBSITE/FACEBOOK            4/2020   SAP0420                     250.00

129631    99-10488   ADMIRAL EXPRESS LLC        SAFETY WEAR                 4/2020   2090328-0                   190.25

127454    99-10547   BEASLEY TECHNOLOGY INC     IT SERVICES/ANTI VIRUS      4/2020   COR-116809                   92.50

128090    99-10547   BEASLEY TECHNOLOGY INC     MTHLY SEC/MONIT/STREET      4/2020   COR-116810                   92.50

127289    99-10558   TECHNICAL PROGRAMMING SERVIYRLY PRNT/MAILING BILLS     4/2020   106048                    1,866.02

129627    99-10567   JOSEPH LEWIS AUSSIEKER     CALIBRATION/FLOW METERS     4/2020   1420                        400.00

127456    99-10695   ADVANCED COPIER SYSTEMS LLCCOPIER RENTAL               4/2020   IN9253                    1,356.07

127279    99-10774   TIMOTHY CHRISTOPHER PENDLEYYEARLY PEST CONTROL         4/2020   833015                      232.50

127213    99-10838   WATER TECH INC             DE-WATER POLYMER            4/2020   86220                       567.00

129303    99-10921   OKLAHOMA CHILLER CORPORATIOSENSOR REPLACEMENT          4/2020   W23956                      794.91

129216    99-10952   AMERICAN DOCUMENT SHREDDINGDOCUMENT SHREDDING          4/2020   106595                       32.50

127280    99-1112    WASTE MANAGEMENT OF OKLAHOMYEARLY REFUSE COLL          4/2020   2252348/2252858          56,709.94

129321    99-1443    BRENNTAG SOUTHWEST, INC.   ACH                         4/2020   BSW196294                14,108.81

129644    99-175     STANDARD DISTRIBUTING INC  PPE GLOVES                  4/2020   402131                       28.60

126693    99-3593    CITY OF TULSA              POLSON SEWER CONSUMP        4/2020   21802 3/13/2020             477.56

127432    99-3593    CITY OF TULSA              METER CONNECT/USE FEE       4/2020   88966 3/23/2020             241.98

126692    99-3633    PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF OSRWCS ELECTRIC SRVC         4/2020   59201 3/26/2020           4,523.66

129830    99-3822    TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC    FEES/ONLINE BILL PAY        4/2020   025-291829                  352.50

127718A   99-3881    FHC, INC. DBA TETRA TECH FHENG SRVCS/SRWCS             4/2020   51576274                  9,225.36

122085    99-4112    ACCURATE ENVIRONMENTAL INC.INFLU/EFFLUENT TESTING      4/2020   CC26012                   3,020.00

127204    99-4112    ACCURATE ENVIRONMENTAL INC.DEQ TESTING                 4/2020   CC30006                     140.00

129314    99-4112    ACCURATE ENVIRONMENTAL INC.TOC FOR MARCH 2020          4/2020   CC19056                     100.00

127339    99-5493    AQUARIUS ENTERPRISES INCORPWATER FOR LAB               4/2020   305890                       13.00



 4/16/2020 10:10 AM                  P U R C H A S E   O R D E R   C L A I M   R E G I S T E R                            PAGE:   3

FUND: 20 - SMA-AUTHORITY FUND                                                                                       SUMMARY REPORT

P.O.#     VENDOR #   NAME                       SUMMARY DESCRIPTION        DATE      INVOICE                    AMOUNT

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

126869    99-7216    US CELLULAR                MTHLY CELL PHONE            4/2020   0365895757                   25.28

126690    99-7994    BANCFIRST                  DEBT SRVC/SMA UTIL BOND     4/2020   APR2020 126690          205,444.80

127425    99-7994    BANCFIRST                  DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS       4/2020   APR 2020 127425         136,491.66

128608    99-8434    FLEETCOR TECHNOLOGIES d/b/aFUEL& OIL/MARCH 2020        4/2020   NP58034300                  131.14

129790    99-8539    CROW BURLLNGAME COMPANY    OIL/AIR FILTERS             4/2020   106-33824                    76.00

127473    99-9207    S2 ENGINEERING SERVICES, PLIND PRETREATMENT SRVCS      4/2020   06-808                    5,000.00

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:              452,318.24

FUND: 29 - STORMWATER MANAGEMENT                                                                                    SUMMARY REPORT

129832    99-103     ONG                        ONG/FEBRUARY 2020           4/2020   6906 3/3/2020               432.85

128608    99-8434    FLEETCOR TECHNOLOGIES d/b/aFUEL& OIL/MARCH 2020        4/2020   NP58034300                  142.63

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:                  575.48

FUND: 30 - STREET & ALLEY                                                                                           SUMMARY REPORT

129832    99-103     ONG                        ONG/FEBRUARY 2020           4/2020   6906 3/3/2020               258.65

129796    99-10873   BEST CHOICE AUTO GLASS LLC WINDSHIELD/444H LOADER      4/2020   71950                       200.00

129793    99-8539    CROW BURLLNGAME COMPANY    MISC. FILTERS               4/2020   106-34006                   249.15

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:                  707.80

FUND: 31 - CEMETERY MAINTENANCE                                                                                     SUMMARY REPORT

129832    99-103     ONG                        ONG/FEBRUARY 2020           4/2020   6906 3/3/2020               374.02

129905    99-10302   LAMPTON WELDING SUPPLY CO, ARGON/MIG WIRE/PLASMA       4/2020   04953422                    278.00

129904    99-3707    O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE INC    MISC EQUIP MAINTENANCE      4/2020   153-223750                    9.27

127117    99-8372    SAWYER ENTERPRISES         MOWING                      4/2020   300040820                 1,600.00

128608    99-8434    FLEETCOR TECHNOLOGIES d/b/aFUEL& OIL/MARCH 2020        4/2020   NP58034300                   20.76

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:                2,282.05

FUND: 32 - HUNTING & FISHING                                                                                        SUMMARY REPORT

126823    99-10516   HINSCH MARY                CARETAKER COMMISSION        4/2020   836710                      115.00

126824    99-10516   HINSCH MARY                CARETAKER STIPEND           4/2020   APR 2020 126824             750.00

127438    99-68      A & M ELECTRIC, INC        ELECTRIC REPAIR @CAMPSITE   4/2020   7429                         97.00

129956    99-68      A & M ELECTRIC, INC        BREAKER REPAIR              4/2020   7402                         90.75

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:                1,052.75

FUND: 33 - GOLF COURSE                                                                                              SUMMARY REPORT

129470    99-10133   HARRELL'S LLC              PRE-EMERGENTS/GREENS        4/2020   INV01354344               2,750.00

129832    99-103     ONG                        ONG/FEBRUARY 2020           4/2020   6906 3/3/2020               354.72

128000    99-4700    COX COMMUNICATIONS         BLANKET-TV'S & GRILL        4/2020   67801 3/30/2020              36.90

129461    99-9734    TERRY SISCO dba SISCO TURF AERATE GREENS               4/2020   3/25/20 129461            2,250.00

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:                5,391.62

FUND: 34 - LIBRARY                                                                                                  SUMMARY REPORT

127049    99-10095   RICOH USA, INC             WARRANTY RENEWAL            4/2020   5059175163                  186.68

129832    99-103     ONG                        ONG/FEBRUARY 2020           4/2020   6906 3/3/2020               441.34



 4/16/2020 10:10 AM                  P U R C H A S E   O R D E R   C L A I M   R E G I S T E R                            PAGE:   4

FUND: 34 - LIBRARY                                                                                                  SUMMARY REPORT

P.O.#     VENDOR #   NAME                       SUMMARY DESCRIPTION        DATE      INVOICE                    AMOUNT

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

128455    99-10904   SENTRY CUSTOM SECURITY INC ADDITION TO SEC GATES       4/2020   SAPU100                   6,195.00

127045    99-7963    TAMMY YVONNE TALLEY        JANITORIAL SERVICES         4/2020   APR 2020 127045             345.00

127046    99-7963    TAMMY YVONNE TALLEY        JANITORIAL SERVICES         4/2020   APR 2020 127046             950.00

129719    99-8769    OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF LABOBOILER INSPECTION           4/2020   B843273                      25.00

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:                8,143.02

FUND: 35 - PARKS & RECREATION                                                                                       SUMMARY REPORT

129661    99-10160   MERRIFIELD OFFICE SOLUTIONSCOFFEE/TEA BREWER           4/2020   189992-001                1,539.99

129674    99-10160   MERRIFIELD OFFICE SOLUTIONSGREETING/THANKS CARDS       4/2020   190877-001                   85.00

129832    99-103     ONG                        ONG/FEBRUARY 2020           4/2020   6906 3/3/2020               850.65

129660    99-10803   SIGN IT INC                SIGN FOR KELLYLANE PARK     4/2020   46461                        60.00

127623    99-4700    COX COMMUNICATIONS         CABLE/BTW& SENIOR CTR       4/2020   88013/30/2020                 7.37

128608    99-8434    FLEETCOR TECHNOLOGIES d/b/aFUEL& OIL/MARCH 2020        4/2020   NP58034300                   91.29

127390A   99-8545    TITAN COMMERCIAL SERVICES, CLEAN/SEC PARK RSTRMS       4/2020   APR 2020 127390             750.00

129668    99-9143    THE PROPHET CORPORATION dbaHAND WEIGHTS                4/2020   9706135                      26.45

127395    99-9288    ADVANCE ALARMS, INC        ALARM MONITORING            4/2020   1831513                      50.00

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:                3,460.75

FUND: 36 - SWIMMING POOL                                                                                            SUMMARY REPORT

129832    99-103     ONG                        ONG/FEBRUARY 2020           4/2020   6906 3/3/2020                28.29

127397    99-9288    ADVANCE ALARMS, INC        ALARM MONITORING            4/2020   1831246                      25.00

127437    99-9370    OKLAHOMA STATE DEPARTMENT OBATH/FOOD SRVC PERMITS      4/2020   19-79286                    125.00

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:                  178.29

FUND: 40 - FIRE CASH                                                                                                SUMMARY REPORT

129587    99-10941   BEAR COMMUNICATIONS INC    BATTERIES/HANDHELD RAD      4/2020   5005631                     587.10

129584    99-9336    ULINE, INC.                IBC TANK/DISINFECTANT       4/2020   118709027                   654.82

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:                1,241.92

FUND: 44 - MAJOR THOROFARE                                                                                          SUMMARY REPORT

126873A   99-2507    SIGNALTEK, INC             STREET SIGNAL REPAIRS       4/2020   17352                       750.00

127177    99-2507    SIGNALTEK, INC             TRAFFIC LIGHT CALLOUTS      4/2020   220915                    1,585.31

128681    99-2507    SIGNALTEK, INC             LIGHT REPAIR/MISS & JAMES   4/2020   220902                    4,750.00

129728    99-2507    SIGNALTEK, INC             TRAFFIC CONTROL ASSEMB      4/2020   220917                   17,950.00

126691    99-3633    PUBLIC SERVICE COMPANY OF OEXPRESSWAY LIGHTS           4/2020   86207 3/31/2020             196.12

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:               25,231.43

FUND: 45 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS                                                                                     SUMMARY REPORT

126695    99-1850    AMERICAN HERITAGE BANK     QRTLY DEBT PAYMENTS         4/2020   4TH QTR 126695           11,696.09

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:               11,696.09

FUND: 46 - WATER & SEWER SALES TAX                                                                                  SUMMARY REPORT

129832    99-103     ONG                        ONG/FEBRUARY 2020           4/2020   6906 3/3/2020               425.01

127896    99-3321    CENTRAL TECH               CMOM SAFETY CLASSES         4/2020   9267                         80.00



 4/16/2020 10:10 AM                  P U R C H A S E   O R D E R   C L A I M   R E G I S T E R                            PAGE:   5

FUND: 46 - WATER & SEWER SALES TAX                                                                                  SUMMARY REPORT

P.O.#     VENDOR #   NAME                       SUMMARY DESCRIPTION        DATE      INVOICE                    AMOUNT

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

128608    99-8434    FLEETCOR TECHNOLOGIES d/b/aFUEL& OIL/MARCH 2020        4/2020   NP58034300                   28.07

129850    99-8861    NATHAN CHADWICK            GRADE & SOD/W GORDON        4/2020   4376                      1,500.00

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:                2,033.08

FUND: 47 - VAC/SPAY/NEUTR ESCRW FUND                                                                                SUMMARY REPORT

129677    99-8803    SPAY OKLAHOMA, INC         SPAY/NEUTER FEES            4/2020   MAR2020                     410.00

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:                  410.00

FUND: 48 - WATER RESOURCE                                                                                           SUMMARY REPORT

129503    99-4895    BADGER METER INC.          50 METERS                   4/2020   1355648                   8,490.71

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:                8,490.71

FUND: 49 - SEWER EXT & DEV FUND                                                                                     SUMMARY REPORT

123678A   99-3881    FHC, INC. DBA TETRA TECH FHFRK RD SANI SEWER EXT       4/2020   51576301                  3,500.00

123969R   99-3881    FHC, INC. DBA TETRA TECH FHWWTP ENGINEERING SRVC       4/2020   51577118                 25,500.00

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:               29,000.00

FUND: 57 - E-911 FUND                                                                                               SUMMARY REPORT

127536A   99-4319    AT&T                       E-911 CHARGES               4/2020   6585 4/1/2020               236.90

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:                  236.90

FUND: 58 - JUVENILE JUSTICE FUND                                                                                    SUMMARY REPORT

127458    99-7564    HUMAN SKILLS  & RESOURCES IPROBATION SERVICES          4/2020   3/1-3/31/2020             1,250.00

127459    99-7564    HUMAN SKILLS  & RESOURCES IDRUG TESTING/COUNSEL        4/2020   4/2020 127459                45.00

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:                1,295.00

FUND: 60 - GRANTS AND AID                                                                                           SUMMARY REPORT

129528    99-10159   LAWRENCE COUNTY NEWSPAPERS,ADVERTISE FOR BIDS          4/2020   24208                       219.20

129527    99-10593   OMEGA RAIL MANAGEMENT INC  RR CROSSING PERMIT APP      4/2020   1/6/2020 129527           1,250.00

122072A   99-3881    FHC, INC. DBA TETRA TECH FHWESTSIDE SEWER/SENEGE       4/2020   51576300                 20,500.00

129358    99-4022    OKLAHOMA STATE UNIVERSITY  VEH RESC TECH 1B CLASS      4/2020   076246                    6,500.00

129360    99-4022    OKLAHOMA STATE UNIVERSITY  STRUC COLL OPER CLASS       4/2020   076230                   28,000.00

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:               56,469.20

FUND: 65 - STREET IMP.SALES TAX                                                                                     SUMMARY REPORT

127426    99-7994    BANCFIRST                  DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS       4/2020   APR 2020 127426          52,102.29

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:               52,102.29

FUND: 81 - G.O. BOND SINKING FUND                                                                                   SUMMARY REPORT

126698    99-9620    UMB, CORPORATE TRUST DEPT. DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS       4/2020   4/2/2020 126698         239,100.00

                                                                                    FUND TOTAL:              239,100.00

                                                                                    GRAND TOTAL:             953,455.14



 4/16/2020 10:10 AM                  P U R C H A S E   O R D E R   C L A I M   R E G I S T E R                            PAGE:   6

                                                    G / L   R E C A P

                              PERIOD   G/L ACCOUNT         NAME                                    AMOUNT           TOTAL

 

 

                               4/2020  10  501-301          TRAINING & TRAVEL                       186.16

                               4/2020  10  501-302          DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS                4,746.50

                               4/2020  10  501-311          PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                 2,500.00

                               4/2020  10  503-201          OFFICE SUPPLIES                          13.50

                               4/2020  10  504-315          FEES & OTHER CHARGES                     40.00

                               4/2020  10  504-407          BOOKS                                   578.97

                               4/2020  10  505-302          DUES AND SUBSCRIPTONS                    25.00

                               4/2020  10  506-301E         EMPLOYEE TRAINING/RECOGNITION           176.79

                               4/2020  10  506-312          ADVERTISING                              10.00

                               4/2020  10  508-315          FEES & OTHER CHARGES                     25.00

                               4/2020  10  508-331          UTILITIES                               215.83

                               4/2020  10  509-302          DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS                     68.50

                               4/2020  10  509-311          PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                 8,630.00

                               4/2020  10  510-311          PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                 6,549.66

                               4/2020  10  510-315          FEES & OTHER CHARGES                      7.50

                               4/2020  10  511-201          OFFICE SUPPLIES                          53.52

                               4/2020  10  511-211          JANITORIAL SUPPLIES                     260.61

                               4/2020  10  511-214          OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES                    129.00

                               4/2020  10  511-214E         EMS SUPPLIES                          2,205.14

                               4/2020  10  511-221          FUEL AND OIL                             81.12

                               4/2020  10  511-241          SAFETY EQUIPMENT                        134.46

                               4/2020  10  511-331          UTILITIES                             1,697.92

                               4/2020  10  511-332          COMMUNICATIONS                          800.20

                               4/2020  10  511-351          MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT                   292.23

                               4/2020  10  511-352          MAINTENANCE-VEHICLES                  3,375.34

                               4/2020  10  511-353          MAINT-BUILDINGS & FIXTURE               792.73

                               4/2020  10  511-505          LEASE PAYMENTS                          150.00

                               4/2020  10  512-211          JANITORIAL SUPPLIES                     272.21

                               4/2020  10  512-214          OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES                    141.55

                               4/2020  10  512-221          FUEL AND OIL                             34.44

                               4/2020  10  512-301          TRAINING AND TRAVEL                      14.00

                               4/2020  10  512-314          UNIFORM CLEANING                        979.59

                               4/2020  10  512-321          PRISONER CARE                           334.60

                               4/2020  10  512-331          UTILITIES                               694.45

                               4/2020  10  512-352          MAINTENANCE-VEHICLES                    834.99

                               4/2020  10  513-313          PRINTING                                 70.40

                               4/2020  10  513-331          UTILITIES                               338.88

                               4/2020  10  513-351          MAINT - EQUIPMENT                        25.00

                               4/2020  10  590-141          CONTRACT LABOR                          185.00

                               4/2020  10  590-211          JANITOR SUPPLIES                        447.36

                               4/2020  10  590-311          PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   250.00

                               4/2020  10  590-312          ADVERTISING                              85.35

                               4/2020  10  590-315          FEES & OTHER CHARGES                     32.50

                               4/2020  10  590-331          UTILITIES                               106.90



 4/16/2020 10:10 AM                  P U R C H A S E   O R D E R   C L A I M   R E G I S T E R                            PAGE:   7

                                                    G / L   R E C A P

                              PERIOD   G/L ACCOUNT         NAME                                    AMOUNT           TOTAL

 

                               4/2020  10  590-332          COMMUNICATIONS                        9,480.05

                               4/2020  10  590-351          MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT                 1,406.07

                               4/2020  10  590-353          MAINT-BUILDING & FIXTURES               232.50

                               4/2020  10  590-505          LEASE PAYMENTS                        2,327.00      52,038.52

 

                               4/2020  20  523-221          FUEL AND OIL                             43.65

                               4/2020  20  523-311          PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                 1,957.43

                               4/2020  20  523-315          OTHER FEES & CHARGES                    352.50

                               4/2020  20  523-352          MAINTENANCE-VEHICLES                    460.58

                               4/2020  20  524-212          CHEMICALS                            19,508.63

                               4/2020  20  524-214          OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES                     30.20

                               4/2020  20  524-221          FUEL & OIL                               39.93

                               4/2020  20  524-311          PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   100.00

                               4/2020  20  524-315B         FEES & OTHR CHGS-SKIATOOK             9,225.36

                               4/2020  20  524-322          WATER PURCHASE                          241.98

                               4/2020  20  524-331          UTILITIES                             6,273.27

                               4/2020  20  524-341          RENTAL OF EQUIPMENT                      13.00

                               4/2020  20  524-354          MAINTENANCE-FACILITIES                  794.91

                               4/2020  20  525-212          CHEMICALS                               567.00

                               4/2020  20  525-221          FUEL & OIL                               47.56

                               4/2020  20  525-231          MINOR TOOLS                             270.40

                               4/2020  20  525-241          SAFETY SUPPLIES                         218.85

                               4/2020  20  525-311          PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   400.00

                               4/2020  20  525-311D         PROF SERVICES-TESTING                   140.00

                               4/2020  20  525-325          SEWAGE DISPOSAL FEE                     477.56

                               4/2020  20  525-331          UTILITIES                               606.92

                               4/2020  20  525-332          COMMUNICATIONS                        1,700.28

                               4/2020  20  525-341          RENTAL OF EQUIPMENT                      18.85

                               4/2020  20  527-141          CONTRACT LABOR                       56,709.94

                               4/2020  20  528-141          CONTRACT LABOR                        5,000.00

                               4/2020  20  528-311D         PROFESSIONAL SERV - TESTING           3,020.00

                               4/2020  20  590-141          CONTRACT LABOR                          185.00

                               4/2020  20  590-311          PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                   250.00

                               4/2020  20  590-315          OTHER FEES & CHARGES                     32.50

                               4/2020  20  590-331          UTILITIES                               106.91

                               4/2020  20  590-351          EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE                 1,356.07

                               4/2020  20  590-353          BUILDING MAINTENANCE                    232.50

                               4/2020  20  590-501F         BOND EXP - SERIES 2012              135,866.66

                               4/2020  20  590-501G         REVENUE BOND EXP - SERIES 2013      205,444.80

                               4/2020  20  590-502          REVENUE BOND TRUSTEE FEES               625.00     452,318.24

 

                               4/2020  29  529-221          FUEL & OIL                              142.63

                               4/2020  29  529-331          UTILITIES                               432.85         575.48

 

                               4/2020  30  530-331          UTILITIES                               258.65



 4/16/2020 10:10 AM                  P U R C H A S E   O R D E R   C L A I M   R E G I S T E R                            PAGE:   8

                                                    G / L   R E C A P

                              PERIOD   G/L ACCOUNT         NAME                                    AMOUNT           TOTAL

 

                               4/2020  30  530-351          MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT                   449.15         707.80

 

                               4/2020  31  531-141          CONTRACT LABOR                        1,600.00

                               4/2020  31  531-214          OPERATING SUPPLIES                      278.00

                               4/2020  31  531-221          FUEL & OIL                               20.76

                               4/2020  31  531-331          UTILITIES                               374.02

                               4/2020  31  531-351          MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT                     9.27       2,282.05

 

                               4/2020  32  532-141          CONTRACT LABOR                          750.00

                               4/2020  32  532-142          PERMIT SALES COMMISSION                 115.00

                               4/2020  32  532-351          MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT                    90.75

                               4/2020  32  532-354          MAINTENANCE-FACILITIES                   97.00       1,052.75

 

                               4/2020  33  533-212          CHEMICALS                             2,750.00

                               4/2020  33  533-331          UTILITIES                               354.72

                               4/2020  33  533-354          MAINTENANCE-FACILITIES                2,286.90       5,391.62

 

                               4/2020  34  534-141          CONTRACT LABOR                        1,295.00

                               4/2020  34  534-302          DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS                  186.68

                               4/2020  34  534-331          UTILITIES                               441.34

                               4/2020  34  534-351          MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT                 6,220.00       8,143.02

 

                               4/2020  35  535-141          CONTRACT LABOR                          750.00

                               4/2020  35  535-221          FUEL AND OIL                             91.29

                               4/2020  35  535-243          RECREATIONAL SUPPLIES                    26.45

                               4/2020  35  535-260          MINOR EQUIPMENT & FURNISHINGS         1,539.99

                               4/2020  35  535-313          PRINTING                                145.00

                               4/2020  35  535-331          UTILITIES                               850.65

                               4/2020  35  535-332          COMMUNICATIONS                            7.37

                               4/2020  35  535-351          MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT                    50.00       3,460.75

 

                               4/2020  36  536-302          DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS                    125.00

                               4/2020  36  536-331          UTILITIES                                28.29

                               4/2020  36  536-351          MAINTENANCE-EQUIPMENT                    25.00         178.29

 

                               4/2020  40  540-401          EQUIPMENT                             1,241.92       1,241.92

 

                               4/2020  44  544-331          UTILITIES                               196.12

                               4/2020  44  544-354          MAINTENANCE-FACILITIES               25,035.31      25,231.43

 

                               4/2020  45  533-501C         NOTE PAYMENTS                        11,696.09      11,696.09

 

                               4/2020  46  546-221          FUEL AND OIL                             28.07

                               4/2020  46  546-301          TRAINING AND TRAVEL                      80.00

                               4/2020  46  546-331          UTILITIES                               425.01



 4/16/2020 10:10 AM                  P U R C H A S E   O R D E R   C L A I M   R E G I S T E R                            PAGE:   9

                                                    G / L   R E C A P

                              PERIOD   G/L ACCOUNT         NAME                                    AMOUNT           TOTAL

 

                               4/2020  46  546-354          MAINTENANCE-FACILITIES                1,500.00       2,033.08

 

                               4/2020  47  547-315          OTHER SERVICES & CHARGES                410.00         410.00

 

                               4/2020  48  1699             INVENTORY PURCHASED                   8,490.71       8,490.71

 

                               4/2020  49  525-311          PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                25,500.00

                               4/2020  49  526-311          PROFESSONAL SERVICES                  3,500.00      29,000.00

 

                               4/2020  57  557-315-.01      FEES & OTHER CHARGES-WIRELESS           236.90         236.90

 

                               4/2020  58  558-141          CONTRACT LABOR                        1,250.00

                               4/2020  58  558-311          PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                    45.00       1,295.00

 

                               4/2020  60  561-410P.22      FACILITIES-CONTRACT 2018-2019           219.20

                               4/2020  60  585-301          TRAINING & TRAVEL                    34,500.00

                               4/2020  60  592-311A         PROF SVCS - DESGN & BID              20,500.00

                               4/2020  60  592-405B         FACILITIES - CONTRACT                 1,250.00      56,469.20

 

                               4/2020  65  565-501          BOND EXP -SERIES 2004/2014           39,583.34

                               4/2020  65  565-501I         2004/2014 DEBT SERVICE - INT         12,185.61

                               4/2020  65  565-502          REVENUE BOND TRUSTEE FEES               333.34      52,102.29

 

                               4/2020  81  581-501I         G.O. BOND INTEREST                   39,100.00

                               4/2020  81  581-501P         G.O. BOND PRINCIPAL                 200,000.00     239,100.00

                                                                               GRAND TOTAL ESTIMATE:               0.00

                                                                               GRAND TOTAL ACTUAL:           953,455.14

                                                                               REPORT TOTAL:                 953,455.14



 

   
    Consent Agenda    8. B.        

City Council Regular
Meeting Date: April 20, 2020  
Submitted For:  Hailey Sharp, Accounts Payable Clerk 
Submitted By: Amber Fisher, Accounts Payable Clerk

SUBJECT:
Consider approving prepaid claims in the amount of $2,136.84

Attachments
Pre-paid Claims 4/20/2020



Prepaid Claims for Agenda 04/20/2020 

Submitted by: Hailey Sharp A/P 

 

 

City: 

 

Martha Stalker Reimbursement for PLA Conference- $2,136.84 

SMA: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total Amount $ 2,136.84 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



AGENDA ITEM

   
    Administration    11. A.        

City Council Regular
Meeting Date: April 20, 2020  
Submitted By: Pam Vann, Finance Director
Department: Finance
Presented By: Pam Vann

SUBJECT:
Discussion and possible action regarding a Resolution of the City of Sapulpa, Oklahoma and the
Sapulpa Municipal Authority amending the FY 2019-2020 annual budget by increasing revenue
and appropriations in the Stormwater Management Fund in the amount of $11,385.00 to recognize
reimbursements for damage to the sewer vac truck.

BACKGROUND:
The City has received an insurance reimbursement in the amount of $11,385.00 for damage to the
sewer vac truck used by the stormwater department.  Appropriations need to be made to cover the
costs of the repairs.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the resolution.

Attachments
Stormwater Management Fund Resolution-Reimbursement
Stormwater Management Fund budget adjustment



                                              

 

                                             RESOLUTION NO.__________________                                

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SAPULPA, OKLAHOMA AND THE SAPULPA 

MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY AMENDING THE FY 2019-2020 ANNUAL BUDGET BY 

INCREASING REVENUE AND APPROPRIATIONS IN THE STORMWATER 

MANAGEMENT FUND IN THE AMOUNT OF $11,385.00 TO RECOGNIZE 

REIMBURSEMENTS FOR DAMAGE TO THE SEWER VAC TRUCK.   

 

 

   WHEREAS, the City of Sapulpa has received $11,385.00 for reimbursements for damage 

done to the sewer vac truck; and   

 

   WHEREAS, appropriations need to be made to cover the repair costs, 

 

      NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Sapulpa, 

Oklahoma, and the Sapulpa Municipal Authority, Sapulpa, Oklahoma, that the following budget 

amendment be made: 

 

 

   WATER AND SEWER IMPROVEMENT SALES TAX 

 

(Increase)      29-4086 Reimbursements     $11,385.00 

     Total Revenue Increase:                                                 $11,385.00 

 

(Increase)      29-529-352 Maintenance-Vehicles    $11,385.00 

     Total Appropriations Increase:                                                $11,385.00 

 

                  PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF SAPULPA, 

OKLAHOMA, AND THE SAPULPA MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY, SAPULPA, and signed by the 

Mayor/Chairman this 20th day of April 2020. 

 

 

                                                                                    ________________________________ 

                                                                                     Lou Martin, Mayor Pro Tem/Chairman 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Shirley Burzio, City Clerk/Trust Secretary 

 

_____________________________________ 

David Widdoes, City Attorney/Trust Attorney 



    BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST

DEPARTMENT   Department Head Signature Date Requested

stormwater management 4/20/2020

 to recognize reimbursement revenue and appropriate for repairs made

to vac truck

 

 RESOLUTION #

  Amount Amount of Amount of Adjusted 

  Account # Account Name Budgeted Increase Decrease Budget

29-4086 Reimbursements $0 $11,385 $11,385

29-529-352 Maintenance-Facilities $45,245 $11,385 $56,630

Date Approved Finance Director Date Rejected  Reason

Date Approved City Manager Date Rejected  Reason

 

 FY 19-20 Transfer #: 19-



AGENDA ITEM

   
    Administration    11. B.        

City Council Regular
Meeting Date: April 20, 2020  
Submitted By: Pam Vann, Finance Director
Department: Finance
Presented By: Pam Vann

SUBJECT:
Discussion and possible action regardinga Resolution of the City of Sapulpa, Oklahoma and the
Sapulpa Municipal Authority amending the FY 2019-2020 annual budget by increasing revenue
and appropriations in the Water and Sewer Sales Tax Fund in the amount of $3,900.00 to
recognize reimbursements for damage to a fire hydrant.

BACKGROUND:
The City has received a reimbursement in the amount of $3,900.00 for damage to a fire hydrant at
117 North Division. An appropriation needs to be made to cover the costs of the repair.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of this resolution.

Attachments
Water & Sewer Improvements Sales Tax Resolution-Reimbursements
Water & Sewer Improvement Sales Tax Fund budget adjustment



                                              

 

                                             RESOLUTION NO.__________________                                

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SAPULPA, OKLAHOMA AND THE SAPULPA 

MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY AMENDING THE FY 2019-2020 ANNUAL BUDGET BY 

INCREASING REVENUE AND APPROPRIATIONS IN THE WATER AND SEWER 

IMPROVEMENT SALES TAX FUND IN THE AMOUNT OF $3,900.00 TO 

RECOGNIZE REIMBURSEMENTS FOR DAMAGE TO A FIRE HYDRANT.   

 

 

   WHEREAS, the City of Sapulpa has received $3,900.00 for reimbursements for damage 

done to a fire hydrant at 117 North Division; and   

 

   WHEREAS, appropriations need to be made to cover the repair costs, 

 

      NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Sapulpa, 

Oklahoma, and the Sapulpa Municipal Authority, Sapulpa, Oklahoma, that the following budget 

amendment be made: 

 

 

   WATER AND SEWER IMPROVEMENT SALES TAX 

 

(Increase)      46-4086 Reimbursements     $3,900.00 

     Total Revenue Increase:                                                 $3,900.00 

 

(Increase)      46-546-354 Facilities      $3,900.00 

     Total Appropriation Increase:                                                $3,900.00 

 

                  PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF SAPULPA, 

OKLAHOMA, AND THE SAPULPA MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY, SAPULPA, and signed by the 

Mayor/Chairman this 20th day of April 2020. 

 

 

                                                                                    ________________________________ 

                                                                                     Lou Martin, Mayor Pro Tem/Chairman 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________ 

Shirley Burzio, City Clerk/Trust Secretary 

 

_____________________________________ 

David Widdoes, City Attorney/Trust Attorney 



    BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST

DEPARTMENT   Department Head Signature Date Requested

W&S SALES TAX 4/20/2020

 to recognize reimbursement revenue and appropriate for repairs made

to fire hydrant

 

 RESOLUTION #

  Amount Amount of Amount of Adjusted 

  Account # Account Name Budgeted Increase Decrease Budget

46-4086 Reimbursements $9,284 $3,900 $13,184

46-546-354 Maintenance-Facilities $227,610 $3,900 $231,510

Date Approved Finance Director Date Rejected  Reason

Date Approved City Manager Date Rejected  Reason

 

 FY 19-20 Transfer #: 19-



AGENDA ITEM

   
    Administration    11. C.        

City Council Regular
Meeting Date: April 20, 2020  
Submitted For: David Widdoes, City Attorney 
Submitted By: Amy Hoehner, Legal Assistant
Department: Legal
Presented By: David Widdoes

SUBJECT:
Discussion and possible action regarding approval of a straight line of credit "SLOC") from
American Heritage Bank for $550,000.00 to provide interim short-term funding for 2020 GO bond
projects, and authorization for the City Manager to execute all necessary and related
documentation. 

BACKGROUND:
On April 6, 2020, the City Council, by Resolution Nos. 4620 and 4621, authorized and approved
the sale of 15,000,000.00 GO Bonds to occur on May 4, 2020. The City will receive the bond sale
proceeds no later than June 28, 2020. To enable the City to start certain bonded projects now,
AHB has agreed to issue a SLOC to provide and satisfy the fund availability requirement in the
interim. The SLOC will, if approved, allow the City to start and implement the HVAC
repair/improvement at the police station and enter into a contract to begin the downtown master
plan project. It is critical that both these projects start now. Since the bond sale proceeds will be
available before the SLOC maturity date, there is no cost to the City unless it actually draws
funds down on the SLOC. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends Council approve the Straight Line of Credit and authorize the City Manager to
execute all documentation as stated.



AGENDA ITEM

   
    Administration    11. D.        

City Council Regular
Meeting Date: April 20, 2020  
Submitted By: Pam Vann, Finance Director
Department: Finance
Presented By: Pam Vann

SUBJECT:
Discussion and possible action regarding a Resolution of the City of Sapulpa, Oklahoma
amending the FY 2019-2020 annual budget by increasing revenue and appropriations in the GO
Bond Construction Fund to recognize proceeds from a Line of Credit issued by American
Heritage Bank in the amount of $550,000.00 for interim short-term funding for projects.

BACKGROUND:
In a separate agenda item the Council is presented with a Line of Credit from American Heritage
Bank for short-term financing of bond projects.  The City will receive proceeds from the sale of
$15,000,000.00 Go Bonds no later than June 28, 2020. Two of the projects, the HVAC system for
the police station and the downtown master plan, need to be started as soon as possible.  This Line
of Credit will enable the City to award the contracts for these projects prior to receipt of the bond
proceeds. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of this resolution.

Attachments
GO Bond Construction Fund Resolution
Go Bond Construction Fund budget adjustment



                                              

 

                                             RESOLUTION NO.__________________                                

 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SAPULPA, OKLAHOMA AMENDING THE FY 

2019-2020 ANNUAL BUDGET BY INCREASING REVENUE AND 

APPROPRIATIONS IN THE GO BOND CONSTRUCTION FUND TO RECOGNIZE 

PROCEEDS FROM A LINE OF CREDIT ISSUED BY AMERICAN HERITAGE BANK 

IN THE AMOUNT OF $550,000.00 FOR INTERIM SHORT-TERM FUNDING FOR 

PROJECTS.  

 

   WHEREAS, the City of Sapulpa has a Line of Credit from American Heritage Bank in the 

amount of $550,000.00 for short-term funding for the 2020 GO Bond Projects; and  

 

   WHEREAS, the City will receive proceeds from the sale of $15,000,000.00 GO Bonds no 

later than June 28, 2020; and   

 

   WHEREAS, it is critical for the HVAC improvements and the downtown master plan be 

started prior to receipt of the bond proceeds; and  

 

   WHEREAS, the Line of Credit will enable the City to start the two projects and if necessary, 

draw funds prior to receipt of the bond proceeds,  

 

      NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Sapulpa, 

Oklahoma, that the following budget amendment be made: 

 

 

   GO BOND CONSTRUCTION FUND 

 

 (Increase)     83-4203 Loan Proceeds                                               $550,000.00 

                                Total Revenue Increase:                                                 $550,000.00 

 

POLICE STATION 

 

 (Increase)      83-592-404 Building & Fixtures            $260,000.00 

     Total Appropriations Increase:                                                 $260,000.00 

 

DOWNTOWN MASTER PLAN 

 

(Increase)      83-580-311 Professional Services                                  $200,000.00 

     Total Appropriations Increase:                                                 $200,000.00 

 

 



                                              

 

 

 

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 

 

(Increase)      83-590-390 Contingency             $  90,000.00 

     Total Appropriations Increase:                                                 $  90,000.00 

 

 

                  PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF SAPULPA, 

OKLAHOMA, and signed by the Mayor this 20th day of April 2020. 

 

 

                                                                                    _______________________ 

                                                                                     Lou Martin, Mayor Pro Tem 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________ 

Shirley Burzio, City Clerk 

 

_________________________ 

David Widdoes, City Attorney 



    BUDGET TRANSFER REQUEST

DEPARTMENT   Department Head Signature Date Requested

GO BOND CONSTR 4/20/2020

 

TO RECOGNIZE LINE OF CREDIT PROCEEDS TO PROVIDE FOR

 APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE HVAC SYSTEM AND THE DOWNTOWN MASTER PLAN

 RESOLUTION #

  Amount Amount of Amount of Adjusted 

  Account # Account Name Budgeted Increase Decrease Budget

83-4203 LOAN PROCEEDS $0 $550,000 $550,000

83-592-404 BUILDING & FIXTURES $0 $260,000 $260,000

83-580-311 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES $0 $200,000 $200,000

83-590-390 CONTINGENCY $0 $90,000 $90,000

Date Approved Finance Director Date Rejected  Reason

Date Approved City Manager Date Rejected  Reason

 

 FY 19-20 Transfer #: 19-



AGENDA ITEM

   
    Administration    11. E.        

City Council Regular
Meeting Date: April 20, 2020  
Submitted For: Pete Sellers, Police Chief 
Submitted By: Chris Jeffries, Police Department Admin.
Department: Police Department
Presented By: Pete Sellers

SUBJECT:
Discussion and possible action regarding award of Bid No. COS-10079 for the Replacement of
Roof Top HVAC Units (Sapulpa Police Department) Project, as follows: (i) rejecting apparent
low bid of $254,480.00 from Air Conditioning Service Inc., for failure to meet bid specifications,
and (ii) awarding bid to Powers Mechanical Service, as being the lowest, responsive and
responsible bidder, in the amount of $256,530.11, and authorize the Mayor/Chairman to execute
all contract documents related thereto.

BACKGROUND:
Six (6) bid packets were received and opened on Wednesday, March 25, 2020. Upon initial
review, it was apparent that two bids required further analysis: the apparent low bid from Air
Conditioning Service, Inc. for $254,480.00, and the next low bid from Powers Mechanical Service
for $256,530.11.  Accordingly, on April 2, 2020, staff requested a detailed listing of equipment
from both bidders to review and compare against the bid specification requirements. Both bidders
responded and submitted additional information by return email.  After careful review and
comparison of these responses, staff was able to determine that only the bid from Powers
Equipment met all specifications and requirements.  As such, the apparent low bid from Air
Conditioning service should be rejected and the bid awarded to Powers Mechanical Service as the
lowest, responsive and responsible bid.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends rejection and award of the bids as stated. 

 



Fiscal Impact

Amount: $256,530.11
To be paid from: GO Bond Construction Fund
Account number: 83-592-404

Attachments
Bid Tabulations
Mechanical Service Company, dba Powers



































































































































AGENDA ITEM

   
    Administration    11. F.        

City Council Regular
Meeting Date: April 20, 2020  
Submitted For: David Widdoes, City Attorney 
Submitted By: Amy Hoehner, Legal Assistant
Department: Legal
Presented By: David Widdoes

SUBJECT:
Discussion and possible action regarding Agreement for Professional Services with Olsson, Inc.
dba Oschner Hare & Hare the Olsson Studio ("Olsson") for creation of a Downtown Sapulpa
Master Plan in the amount of $197,000.00.

BACKGROUND:
A request for proposal (RFP) for the creation of a Downtown Master Plan was sent out to all
qualified firms who responded to the City's request for qualifications.  The purpose of the RFP
was to identify a consultant that could supply the City of Sapulpa with a long term, visionary, and
comprehensive Downtown Master Plan with the goal of attracting quality and sustainable growth
and economic development.

On February 17, 2020, the RFP's were presented to the City Council by the following firms: (i)
RDG/PDG, (ii) McClelland Consulting Engineers, Inc, (iii) BKL, Inc., and (iv) Oschner Hare &
Hare the Olsson Studio. On March 9, 2020, the Administration and Finance Committee met and
recommended that the City Council retain Oschner Hare & Hare, the Olsson Studio ("Olsson") to
provide the required services to create the City's Downtown Master Plan.

The attached Agreement for Professional Services has been reviewed and provides for completion
of all services, as represented by Olsson at the presentation, including kickoff, management and
progress meetings, branding, comprehensive mapping and data analysis, economic and market
positioning analysis and strategy, transportation and parking analysis, online, in-person and
community engagement, culminating in a refined downtown master plan for the community.
These services shall commence with an estimated start date of May 2020 and are estimated to be
completed in April 2021. The costs of these services shall not exceed $197,000.00, and is payable
30 days after receipt upon an approved invoice detailing services rendered. The funds necessary
for these services are available from the bond sale proceeds authorized by City Council



Resolution 4620.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the referenced agreement as stated.

Fiscal Impact

Amount: $197,000.00
To be paid from: GO Bond Construction Fund
Account number: 83-580-311

Attachments
Agreement



 

1814 Main / Kansas City, MO 64108 

O 816.842.8844 / olsson.com 

 
 
 
 

LETTER AGREEMENT 
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

 
March 10, 2020 

City of Sapulpa, Oklahoma 
Attn: Nikki Howard 
424 E Hobson Ave 
Sapulpa, OK 74066 
 
 
Re: LETTER AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Downtown Sapulpa Master Plan (the “Project”) 
Sapulpa, Oklahoma 
 
 

Dear Ms. Howard: 
 

It is our understanding that the City of Sapulpa, Oklahoma (“Client”) requests Olsson, Inc. dba 
Ochsner Hare & Hare the Olsson Studio (“Olsson”) to perform the services described herein 
pursuant to the terms of this Letter Agreement for Professional Services, Olsson’s General 
Provisions and any exhibits attached hereto (all documents constitute and are referred to herein 
as the “Agreement”) for the Project. 

 
Olsson has acquainted itself with the information provided by Client relative to the Project and 
based upon such information offers to provide the services described below for the Project.  Client 
warrants that it is either the legal owner of the property to be improved by this Project or that Client 
is acting as the duly authorized agent of the legal owner of such property.  Client acknowledges 
that it has reviewed the General Provisions and any exhibits attached hereto, which are expressly 
made a part of and incorporated into the Agreement by this reference.  In the event of any conflict 
or inconsistency between this Letter Agreement, and the General Provisions regarding the 
services to be performed by Olsson, the terms of the General Provisions shall take precedence. 

 
Olsson shall provide the following services (“Scope of Services”) to Client for the Project as more 
specifically described in “Scope of Services” attached hereto. Should Client request work in 
addition to the Scope of Services, Olsson shall invoice Client for such additional services 
(Optional Additional Services) at the standard hourly billing labor rate charged for those 
employees actually performing the work, plus reimbursable expenses if any.  Olsson shall not 
commence work on Optional Additional Services without Client’s prior written approval. 
 
Olsson agrees to provide all of its services in a timely, competent and professional manner, in 
accordance with applicable standards of care, for projects of similar geographic location, quality 
and scope. 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 3 

SCHEDULE FOR OLSSON’S SERVICES  
 
Unless otherwise agreed, Olsson expects to perform its services under the Agreement as follows: 
 
Anticipated Start Date:   May 2020 
Anticipated Completion Date:   April 2021 
 
Olsson will endeavor to start its services on the Anticipated Start Date and to complete its services 
on the Anticipated Completion Date.  However, the Anticipated Start Date, the Anticipated 
Completion Date, and any milestone dates are approximate only, and Olsson reserves the right 
to adjust its schedule and any or all of those dates at its sole discretion, for any reason, including, 
but not limited to, delays caused by Client or delays caused by third parties. 
 
COMPENSATION 
 
Client shall pay to Olsson for the performance of the Scope of Services a lump sum of One 
Hundred Ninety-Seven Thousand Dollars ($197,000.00). Olsson’s reimbursable expenses for this 
project are included in the lump sum. Olsson shall submit invoices on a monthly basis, and 
payment is due within 30 calendar days of invoice date.  
 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SERVICE 
 
We have discussed with you the risks, rewards and benefits of the Project, the Scope of Services, 
and our fees for such services and the Agreement represents the entire understanding between 
Client and Olsson with respect to the Project.  The Agreement may only be modified in writing 
signed by both parties.   
 
Client’s designated Project Representative shall be _____________________________. 
 
  



Page 3 of 3 

If this Agreement satisfactorily sets forth your understanding of our agreement, please sign in the 
space provided below.  Retain one original for your files and return an executed original to Olsson.  
This proposal will be open for acceptance for a period of 30 days from the date set forth above, 
unless changed by us in writing. 
 
OLSSON, INC. DBA OCHSNER HARE & HARE THE OLSSON STUDIO 
 
 
 
 
By __________________________________ By __________________________________ 
                Korey P. Schulz, ASLA, PLA                   Ken Boone, Vice President 
 
 

By signing below, you acknowledge that you have full authority to bind Client to the terms of the 
Agreement.  If you accept the terms set forth herein, please sign: 
 
 
CITY OF SAPULPA, OKLAHOMA 
 
 
By  _______________________________  
    Signature 
 
Print Name _________________________ 
 
Title _______________________________ Dated _________________________ 
 
 
Attachments 
General Provisions 
Scope of Services 
 



 

 

 Page 1 of 9  19-3868.01 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
These General Provisions are attached to and made a part of 
the respective Letter Agreement or Master Agreement, dated 
March 10, 2020 between City of Sapulpa, Oklahoma (“Client”) 
and Olsson, Inc. (“Olsson”) for professional services in 
connection with the project or projects arising under such Letter 
Agreement or Master Agreement (the “Project(s)”). 
 
As used herein, the term "this Agreement" refers to these 
General Provisions, the applicable Letter Agreement or Master 
Agreement, and any other exhibits or attachments thereto as if 
they were part of one and the same document. 
 
SECTION 1—OLSSON’S SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Olsson’s scope of services for the Project(s) is set forth in the 
applicable Letter Agreement or Master Agreement (“Scope of 
Services”). 
  
SECTION 2—ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
 
2.1 Unless otherwise expressly included, Scope of 
Services does not include the categories of additional services 
set forth in Sections 2.2 and 2.3. 
 
2.2 If Client and Olsson mutually agree for Olsson to 
perform any optional additional services as set forth in this 
Section 2.2 (“Optional Additional Services”), Client will provide 
written approval of the agreed-upon Optional Additional 
Services, and Olsson shall perform or obtain from others such 
services and will be entitled to an increase in compensation at 
rates provided in this Agreement. Olsson may elect not to 
perform all or any of the Optional Additional Services without 
cause or explanation: 
 
 2.2.1 Preparation of applications and supporting 
documents for governmental financial support of the Project(s); 
preparation or review of environmental studies and related 
services; and assistance in obtaining environmental approvals. 
 
 2.2.2 Services to make measured drawings of or to 
investigate existing conditions of facilities. 
 
 2.2.3 Services resulting from changes in the general 
scope, extent or character of the Project(s) or major changes in 
documentation previously accepted by Client where changes 
are due to causes beyond Olsson's control. 
 
 2.2.4 Services resulting from the discovery of 
conditions or circumstances which were not contemplated by 
Olsson at the commencement of this Agreement.  Olsson shall 
notify Client of the newly discovered conditions or 
circumstances and Client and Olsson shall renegotiate, in good 
faith, the compensation for this Agreement, if amended terms 
cannot be agreed upon, Olsson may terminate this Agreement 
and Olsson shall be paid for its services through the date of 
termination. 
 
 2.2.5 Providing renderings or models. 
 
 2.2.6 Preparing documents for alternate bids 
requested by Client. 
 
 2.2.7 Analysis of operations, maintenance or 
overhead expenses; value engineering; the preparation of rate 

schedules; earnings or expense statements; cash flow or 
economic evaluations or; feasibility studies, appraisals or 
valuations. 
 
 2.2.8 Furnishing the services of independent 
professional associates or consultants for work beyond the 
Scope of Services. 
 
 2.2.9 Services necessary due to the Client’s award of 
more than one prime contract for the Project(s); services 
necessary due to the construction contract containing cost plus 
or incentive-savings provisions; services necessary in order to 
arrange for performance by persons other than the prime 
contractor; or those services necessary to administer Client’s 
contract(s). 
 
 2.2.10 Services in connection with staking out the work 
of contractor(s). 
 
 2.2.11 Services during out-of-town travel or visits to the 
site beyond those specifically identified in this Agreement. 
 
 2.2.12 Preparation of operating and maintenance 
manuals. 
 
 2.2.13 Services to redesign some or all of the 
Project(s). 
 
 2.2.14 Preparing to serve or serving as a consultant or 
witness or assisting Client with any litigation, arbitration or other 
legal or administrative proceeding. 
 
 2.2.15 Services relating to Construction Observation, 
Certification, Inspection, Construction Cost Estimating, project 
observation, construction management, construction 
scheduling, construction phasing or review of Contractor's 
performance means or methods. 
 

2.3 Whenever, in its sole discretion, Olsson determines 

additional services as set forth in this Section 2.3 are necessary 

to avoid a delay in the completion of the Project(s) (“Necessary 

Additional Services”), Olsson shall perform or obtain from others 

such services without waiting for specific instructions from 

Client, and Olsson will be entitled to an increase in 

compensation for such services at the standard hourly billing 

rate charged for those employees performing the services, plus 

reimbursable expenses, if any: 
 
 2.3.1 Services in connection with work directive 
changes and/or change orders directed by the Client to any 
contractors. 
 
 2.3.2 Services in making revisions to drawings and 
specifications occasioned by the acceptance of substitutions 
proposed by contractor(s); services after the award of each 
contract in evaluating and determining the acceptability of an 
unreasonable or excessive number of substitutions proposed by 
contractor(s); or evaluating an unreasonable or extensive 
number of claims submitted by contractor(s) or others in 
connection with the Project(s). 
 
 2.3.3 Services resulting from significant delays, 
changes or price increases occurring as a direct or indirect result 
of material, equipment or energy shortages. 



 

 

 
 Page 2 of 9  19-3868.01 

 
 2.3.4 Additional or extended services during 
construction made necessary by (1) work damaged during 
construction, (2) a defective, inefficient or neglected work by any 
contractor, (3) acceleration of the progress schedule involving 
services beyond normal working hours, or (4) default by any 
contractor. 
 
SECTION 3—CLIENT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
3.1. Client shall provide all criteria and full information as to 
Client's requirements for the Project(s); designate and identify in 
writing a person to act with authority on Client's behalf in respect 
of all aspects of the Project(s); examine and respond promptly 
to Olsson's submissions; and give prompt written notice to 
Olsson whenever Client observes or otherwise becomes aware 
of any defect in the Olsson’s services. 
 
3.2 Client agrees to pay Olsson the amounts due for 
services rendered and expenses within thirty (30) days after 
Olsson has provided its invoice for such services.  In the event 
Client disputes any invoice item, Client shall give Olsson written 
notice of such disputed item within fifteen (15) days after receipt 
of such invoice and shall pay to Olsson the undisputed portion of 
the invoice according to the provisions hereof. If Client fails to pay 
any invoiced amounts when due, interest will accrue on each 
unpaid amount at the rate of thirteen percent (13%) per annum 
from the date due until paid according to the provisions of this 
Agreement. Interest shall not be charged on any disputed invoice 
item which is finally resolved in Client’s favor. Payment of interest 
shall not excuse or cure any default or delay in payment of 
amounts due. 
 
 3.2.1 If Client fails to make any payment due Olsson 
for services and expenses within thirty (30) days after receipt of 
Olsson's statement therefore, Olsson may, after giving seven (7) 
days written notice to Client, suspend services to Client under 
this Agreement until Olsson has been paid in full all amounts 
due for services, expenses and charges and Client will not 
obtain any license to any Work Product or be entitled to retain 
or use any Work Product pursuant to Section 7.1 unless and 
until Olsson has been paid in full and Client has fully satisfied all 
of its obligations under this Agreement.  
 
3.3 Payments to Olsson shall not be withheld, postponed 
or made contingent on the construction, completion or success 
of the Project(s) or upon receipt by the Client of offsetting 
reimbursements or credit from other parties who may have 
caused the need for additional services. No withholdings, 
deductions or offsets shall be made from Olsson’s 
compensation for any reason unless and until Olsson has been 
found to be legally liable for such amounts.  
 
3.4 Client shall also do the following and pay all costs 
incident thereto: 
 
 3.4.1 Furnish to Olsson any existing and/or required 
borings, probings or subsurface explorations; hydrographic 
surveys; laboratory tests or inspections of samples, materials or 
equipment; appropriate professional interpretations of any of the 
foregoing; environmental assessment and impact statements; 
property, boundary, easement, right-of-way, topographic or 
utility surveys; property descriptions; and/or zoning or deed 
restrictions; all of which Olsson may rely upon in performing 
services hereunder. 
 

 3.4.2 Guarantee access to and make all provisions for 
Olsson to enter upon public and private property reasonably 
necessary to perform its services on the Project(s). 
 
 3.4.3 Provide such legal, accounting, independent 
cost estimating or insurance counseling services as may be 
required for the Project(s); any auditing service required in 
respect of contractor(s)' applications for payment; and/or any 
inspection services to determine if contractor(s) are performing 
the work legally. 
 
 3.4.4 Provide engineering surveys to establish 
reference points for construction unless specifically included in 
Olsson’s Scope of Services. 
 
 3.4.5 Furnish approvals and permits from all 
governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project(s). 
 
 3.4.6 If more than one prime contractor is to be 
awarded the contract for construction, designate a party to have 
responsibility and authority for coordinating and interfacing the 
activities of the various prime contractors. 
  
 3.4.7  All fees and other amounts payable by Client 
under this Agreement are exclusive of taxes and similar 
assessments. Without limiting the foregoing, Client is 
responsible and liable for all sales, service, use, and excise 
taxes, and any other similar taxes, duties, and charges of any 
kind imposed by any federal, state, county or local governmental 
authority on any amounts payable by Client under this 
Agreement, other than any taxes imposed on Olsson’s 
income.  In the event any governmental authority assesses 
Olsson for taxes, duties, or charges of any kind in connection 
with Scope of Services provided by Olsson to Client, Olsson 
shall be entitled to submit an invoice to Client, its successors or 
assigns, for the amount of said assessment and related interest 
and penalties.  Client shall pay such invoice in accordance with 

Olsson’s standard payment terms. 
 
3.5 Client shall pay all costs incident to obtaining bids or 
proposals from contractor(s). 
 
3.6 Client shall pay all permit application review costs for 
government authorities having jurisdiction over the Project(s). 
 
3.7 Contemporaneously with the execution of this 
Agreement, Client shall designate in writing an individual to act 
as its duly authorized Project(s) representative. 
 
3.8 Client shall bear sole responsibility for: 
 

 3.8.1  Jobsite safety. Neither the professional activities 

of Olsson, nor the presence of Olsson or its employees or sub-

consultants at the Project shall impose any duty on Olsson 

relating to any health or safety laws, regulations, rules, 

programs or procedures.  
 
 3.8.2 Notifying third parties including any 
governmental agency or prospective purchaser, of the existence 
of any hazardous or dangerous materials located in or around 
the Project(s) site.  
 
 3.8.3 Providing and updating Olsson with accurate 
information regarding existing conditions, including the 
existence of hazardous or dangerous materials, proposed 



 

 

 
 Page 3 of 9  19-3868.01 

Project(s) site uses, any change in Project(s) plans, and all 
subsurface installations, such as pipes, tanks, cables and 
utilities within the Project(s) site.  
 
 3.8.4 Providing and assuming all responsibility for: 
interpretation of contract documents; Construction 
Observations; Certifications; Inspections; Construction Cost 
Estimating; project observations; construction management; 
construction scheduling; construction phasing; and review of 
Contractor’s performance, means and methods. Client waives 
any claims against Olsson and releases Olsson from liability 
relating to or arising out of such services and agrees, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold Olsson 
harmless from any and all damages, liabilities or costs, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and defense costs, relating to such 
actions and services. 
 
3.9 Client releases Olsson from liability for any incorrect 
advice, judgment or decision based on inaccurate information 
furnished by Client or others. 
 
3.10 If reasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent 
foreseeable bodily injury or death to persons resulting from a 
material or substance, including hazardous materials, 
encountered on the site, Olsson may immediately stop work in 
the affected area and report the condition to Client.  Client shall 
be solely responsible for retaining independent consultant(s) to 
determine the nature of the material and to abate or remove the 
material. Olsson shall not be required to perform any services or 
work relating to or in the area of such material until the material 
has been removed or rendered harmless and only after 
approval, if necessary of the government agency with 
jurisdiction. 
 
SECTION 4—MEANING OF TERMS 
 
4.1 The “Cost of Construction” of the entire Project(s) 
(herein referred to as "Cost of Construction") means the total 
cost to Client of those portions of the entire Project(s) designed 
and specified by Olsson, but it will not include Olsson's 
compensation and expenses, the cost of land, rights-of-way, or 
compensation for or damages to, properties unless this 
Agreement so specifies, nor will it include Client's legal, 
accounting, insurance counseling or auditing services, or 
interest and financing charges incurred in connection with the 
Project(s) or the cost of other services to be provided by others 
to Client pursuant to Section 3. 
 
4.2 The “Salary Costs”:  Used as a basis for payment mean 
salaries and wages (base and incentive) paid to all Olsson's 
personnel engaged directly on the Project(s), including, but not 
limited to, engineers, architects, surveyors, designers, 
draftsmen, specification writers, estimators, other technical and 
business personnel; plus the cost of customary and statutory 
benefits, including, but not limited to, social security 
contributions, unemployment, excise and payroll taxes, workers' 
compensation, health and retirement benefits, sick leave, 
vacation and holiday pay and other group benefits.  
 
4.3 “Certify” or “a Certification”:  If included in the Scope of 
Services, such services shall be limited to a statement of 
Olsson’s opinion, to the best of Olsson’s professional 
knowledge, information and belief, based upon its periodic 
observations and reasonable review of reports and tests created 
by Olsson or provided to Olsson. Olsson shall not be responsible 
for constant or exhaustive observation of the work. Client 

understands and agrees that any certifications based upon 
discrete sampling observations and that such observations 
indicate conditions that exist only at the locations and times the 
observations were performed. Performance of such observation 
services and certification does not constitute a warranty or 
guarantee of any type, since even with diligent observation, 
some construction defects, deficiencies or omissions in the work 
may occur. Olsson shall have no responsibility for the means, 
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures selected by the 
contractor(s) or for the contractor’s safety precautions and 
programs nor for failure by the contractor(s) to comply with any 
laws or regulations relating to the performance or furnishing of 
any work by the contractor(s). Client shall hold its contractor(s) 
solely responsible for the quality and completion of the 
Project(s), including construction in accordance with the 
construction documents. Any duty under this Agreement is for 
the sole benefit of the Client and not for any third party, including 
the contractor(s) or any subcontractor(s). Olsson shall sign pre-
printed form certifications only if (a) Olsson approves the form 
of such certification prior to the commencement of its services, 
(b) such certification is expressly included in the Scope of 
Services, (c) the certification is limited to a statement of 
professional opinion and does not constitute a warranty or 
guarantee, express or implied. It is understood that any 
certification by Olsson shall not relieve the Client or the Client’s 
contractors of any responsibility or obligation they may have by 
industry custom or under any contract.   
 
4.4 “Opinion of Probable Cost”:  An opinion of probable 
construction cost made by Olsson. In providing opinions of 
probable construction cost, it is recognized that neither the 
Client nor Olsson has control over the costs of labor, equipment 
or materials, or over the contractor’s methods of determining 
prices or bidding. The opinion of probable construction costs is 
based on Olsson’s reasonable professional judgment and 
experience and does not constitute a warranty, express or 
implied, that the contractor’s bids or the negotiated price of the 
work on the Project(s) will not vary from the Client’s budget or 
from any opinion of probable cost prepared by Olsson. 
 
4.5 “Day”:  A calendar day of 24 hours. The term “days” 
shall mean consecutive calendar days of 24 hours each, or 
fraction thereof. 
 
4.6 “Construction Observation”: If included in the Scope of 
Services, such services during construction shall be limited to 
periodic visual observation and testing of the work to determine 
that the observed work generally conforms to the contract 
documents. Olsson shall not be responsible for constant or 
exhaustive observation of the work. Client understands and 
agrees that such visual observations are discrete sampling 
procedures and that such procedures indicate conditions that 
exist only at the locations and times the observations were 
performed. Performance of Construction Observation services 
does not constitute a warranty or guarantee of any type, since 
even with diligent observation, some construction defects, 
deficiencies or omissions in the work may occur. Olsson shall 
have no responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures selected by the contractor or for the 
contractor’s safety precautions and programs nor for failure by 
the contractor to comply with any laws or regulations relating to 
the performance or furnishing of any work by the contractor.  
Client shall hold its contractor(s) solely responsible for the 
quality and completion of the Project(s), including construction 
in accordance with the construction documents. Any duty under 
this Agreement is for the sole benefit of the Client and not for 



 

 

 
 Page 4 of 9  19-3868.01 

any third party, including the contractor or any subcontractor.  
Client, or its designees shall notify Olsson at least twenty-four 
(24) hours in advance of any field tests and observations 
required by the construction documents. 
 
4.7 “Inspect” or “Inspection”:  If included in the Scope of 
Services, such services shall be limited to the periodic visual 
observation of the contractor’s completed work to permit Olsson, 
as an experienced and qualified professional, to determine that 
the observed work, generally conforms to the contract 
documents. Olsson shall not be responsible for constant or 
exhaustive observation of the work. Client understands and 
agrees that such visual observations are discrete sampling 
procedures and that such procedures indicate conditions that 
exist only at the locations and times the observations were 
performed. Performance of such observation services does not 
constitute a warranty or guarantee of any type, since even with 
diligent observation, some construction defects, deficiencies or 
omissions in the work may occur. Olsson shall have no 
responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences 
or procedures selected by the contractor(s) or for the 
contractor’s safety precautions and programs nor for failure by 
the contractor(s) to comply with any laws or regulations relating 
to the performance or furnishing of any work by the 
contractor(s). Client shall hold its contractor(s) solely 
responsible for the quality and completion of the Project(s), 
including construction in accordance with the construction 
documents. Any duty under this Agreement is for the sole benefit 
of the Client and not for any third party, including the 
contractor(s) or any subcontractor(s). Client, or its designees, 
shall notify Olsson at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of 
any inspections required by the construction documents. 
 
4.8 “Record Documents”:  Drawings prepared by Olsson 
upon the completion of construction based upon the drawings 
and other data furnished to Olsson by the Contractor and others 
showing significant changes in the work on the Project(s) made 
during construction. Because Record Documents are prepared 
based on unverified information provided by others, Olsson 
makes no warranty of the accuracy or completeness of the 
Record Documents. 
 
SECTION 5—TERMINATION 
 
5.1 Either party may terminate this Agreement, for cause 
upon giving the other party not less than seven (7) calendar days 
written notice of default for any of the following reasons; 
provided, however, that the notified party shall have the same 
seven (7) calendar day period in which to cure the default: 
 
 5.1.1 Substantial failure by the other party to perform 
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and through no 
fault of the terminating party; 
 
 5.1.2 Assignment of this Agreement or transfer of the 
Project(s) by either party to any other entity without the prior 
written consent of the other party; 
 
 5.1.3 Suspension of the Project(s) or Olsson’s 
services by the Client for more than ninety (90) calendar days, 
consecutive or in the aggregate. 
 
5.2 In the event of a “for cause” termination of this 
Agreement by either party, the Client shall, within fifteen (15) 
calendar days after receiving Olsson’s final invoice, pay Olsson 
for all services rendered and all reimbursable costs incurred by 

Olsson up to the date of termination, in accordance with the 
payment provisions of this Agreement. 
 
 5.2.1 In the event of a “for cause” termination of this 
Agreement by Client and (a) a final determination of default is 
entered against Olsson under Section 6.2 and (b) Client has fully 
satisfied all of its obligations under this Agreement, Olsson shall 
grant Client a limited license to use the Work Product pursuant 
to Section 7.1. 
 
5.3 The Client may terminate this Agreement for the 
Client’s convenience and without cause upon giving Olsson not 
less than seven (7) calendar days written notice. In the event of 
any termination that is not the fault of Olsson, the Client shall 
pay Olsson, in addition to payment for services rendered and 
reimbursable costs incurred, for all expenses reasonably 
incurred by Olsson in connection with the orderly termination of 
this Agreement, including but not limited to demobilization, 
reassignment of personnel, associated overhead costs, any 
fees, costs or expenses incurred by Olsson in preparing or 
negotiating any proposals submitted to Client for Olsson’s 
Scope of Services or Optional Additional Services under this 
Agreement and all other expenses directly resulting from the 
termination and a reasonable profit of ten percent (10%) of 
Olsson’s actual costs (including overhead) incurred. 
 
SECTION 6—DISPUTE RESOLUTION 
 
6.1. Mediation 
 
 6.1.1 All questions in dispute under this Agreement 
shall be submitted to mediation.  On the written notice of either 
party to the other of the election to submit any dispute under this 
Agreement to mediation, each party shall designate their 
representatives and shall meet within ten (10) days after the 
service of the notice. The parties themselves shall then attempt 
to resolve the dispute within ten (10) days of meeting. 
 
 6.1.2 Should the parties themselves be unable to 
agree on a resolution of the dispute, and then the parties shall 
appoint a third party who shall be a competent and impartial 
party and who shall be acceptable to each party, to mediate the 
dispute. Any third party mediator shall be qualified to evaluate 
the performance of both of the parties, and shall be familiar with 
the design and construction progress. The third party shall meet 
to hear the dispute within ten (10) days of their selection and 
shall attempt to resolve the dispute within fifteen (15) days of 
first meeting. 
 
 6.1.3 Each party shall pay the fees and expenses of 
the third party mediator and such costs shall be borne equally 
by both parties. 
 
6.2 Arbitration or Litigation  
 
 6.2.1 Olsson and Client agree that from time to time, 
there may be conflicts, disputes and/or disagreements between 
them, arising out of or relating to the services of Olsson, the 
Project(s), or this Agreement (hereinafter collectively referred to 
as “Disputes”) which may not be resolved through mediation.  
Therefore, Olsson and Client agree that all Disputes shall be 
resolved by binding arbitration or litigation at the sole discretion 
and choice of Olsson. If Olsson chooses arbitration, the 
arbitration proceeding shall proceed in accordance with the 
Construction Industry Arbitration Rules of the AAA.   
 



 

 

 
 Page 5 of 9  19-3868.01 

 6.2.2 Client hereby agrees that Olsson shall have the 
right to include Client, by consolidation, joinder or other manner, 
in any arbitration or litigation involving Olsson and a 
subconsultant or subcontractor of Olsson or Olsson and any 
other person or entity, regardless of who originally initiated such 
proceedings. 
  
6.2.3 If Olsson chooses arbitration or litigation, either 
may be commenced at any time prior to or after completion of 
the Project(s), provided that if arbitration or litigation is 
commenced prior to the completion of the Project(s), the 
obligations of the parties under the terms of this Agreement shall 
not be altered by reason of the arbitration or litigation being 
conducted. Any arbitration hearings or litigation shall take place 
inSapulpa, Oklahoma.   
 
 6.2.4 The prevailing party in any arbitration or 
litigation relating to any Dispute shall be entitled to recover from 
the other party those reasonable attorney fees, costs and 
expenses incurred by the prevailing party in connection with the 
Dispute.  
 
6.3 Certification of Merit  
 
Client agrees that it will not assert any claim, including but not 
limited to, professional negligence, negligence, breach of 
contract, misconduct, error, omission, fraud, or 
misrepresentation (“Claim”) against Olsson, or any Olsson 
subconsultant, unless Client has first provided Olsson with a 
sworn certificate of merit affidavit setting forth the factual and 
legal basis for such Claim (the “Certificate”).  The Certificate 
shall be executed by an independent engineer (“Certifying 
Engineer”) currently licensed and practicing in the jurisdiction of 
the Project site.  The Certificate must contain: (a) the name and 
license number of the Certifying Engineer; (b the qualifications 
of the Certifying Engineer, including a list of all publications 
authored in the previous 10 years and a list of all cases in which 
the Certifying Engineer testified within the previous 4 years ; (c) 
a statement by the Certifying Engineer setting forth the factual 
basis for the Claim; (d) a statement by the Certifying Engineer 
of each and every act, error, or omission that the Certifying 
Engineer contends supports the Claim or any alleged violation 
of any applicable standard of care; (e) a statement  by the 
Certifying Engineer of all opinions the Certifying Engineer holds 
regarding the Claim or any alleged violation of any applicable 
standard of care; (f) a list of every document related to the 
Project reviewed by the Certifying Engineer; and (g) a list of 
every individual who provided Certifying Engineer with any 
information regarding the Project.  The Certificate shall be 
provided to Olsson not less than thirty (30) days prior to any 
arbitration or litigation commenced by Client or not less than ten 
(10) days prior to the initial response submitted by Client in any 
arbitration or litigation commenced by someone other than 
Client.  The Certificate is a condition precedent to the right of 
Client to assert any Claim in any litigation or arbitration and 
Client’s failure to timely provide a Certificate to Olsson will be 
grounds for automatic dismissal of the Claim with prejudice.   
 
SECTION 7—MISCELLANEOUS 
 
7.1 Reuse of Documents 
 
All documents, including drawings, specifications, reports, 
boring logs, maps, field data, data, test results, information, 
recommendations, or opinions prepared or furnished by Olsson 
(and Olsson's independent professional associates and 

consultants) pursuant to this Agreement (“Work Product”), are 
all Olsson’s instruments of service, do not constitute goods or 
products, and are copyrighted works of Olsson. Olsson shall 
retain an ownership and property interest in such Work Product 
whether or not the Project(s) is completed. If Client has fully 
satisfied all of its obligations under this Agreement, Olsson shall 
grant Client a limited license to use the Work Product and Client 
may make and retain copies of Work Product for use in 
connection with the Project(s); however, such Work Product is 
for the exclusive use and benefit of Client or its agents in 
connection with the Project(s), are not intended to inform, guide 
or otherwise influence any other entities or persons with respect 
to any particular business transactions, and should not be relied 
upon by any entities or persons other than Client or its agents 
for any purpose other than the Project(s). Such Work Product is 
not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by Client or 
others on extensions of the Project(s) or on any other Project(s). 
Client will not distribute or convey such Work Product to any 
other persons or entities without Olsson's prior written consent 
which shall include a release of Olsson from liability and 
indemnification by the third party. Any reuse of Work Product 
without written verification or adaptation by Olsson for the 
specific purpose intended will be at Client's sole risk and without 
liability or legal exposure to Olsson, or to Olsson's independent 
professional associates or consultants, and Client shall 
indemnify and hold harmless Olsson and Olsson's independent 
professional associates and consultants from all claims, 
damages, losses and expenses including attorneys' fees arising 
out of or resulting therefrom. Any such verification or adaptation 
of Work Product will entitle Olsson to further compensation at 
rates to be agreed upon by Client and Olsson. 
 
7.2 Electronic Files 
 
By accepting and utilizing any electronic file of any Work Product 
or other data transmitted by Olsson, the Client agrees for itself, 
its successors, assigns, insurers and all those claiming under or 
through it, that by using any of the information contained in the 
attached electronic file, all users agree to be bound by the 
following terms. All of the information contained in any electronic 
file is the work product and instrument of service of Olsson, who 
shall be deemed the author, and shall retain all common law, 
statutory law and other rights, including copyrights, unless the 
same have previously been transferred in writing to the Client. 
The information contained in any electronic file is provided for 
the convenience to the Client and is provided in “as is” condition. 
The Client is aware that differences may exist between the 
electronic files transferred and the printed hard-copy original 
signed and stamped drawings or reports. In the event of a 
conflict between the signed original documents prepared by 
Olsson and the electronic files, which may be transferred, the 
signed and sealed original documents shall govern. Olsson 
specifically disclaims all warranties, expressed or implied, 
including without limitation, and any warranty of merchantability 
or fitness for a particular purpose with respect to any electronic 
files. It shall be Client’s responsibility to confirm the accuracy of 
the information contained in the electronic file and that it 
accurately reflects the information needed by the Client. Client 
shall not retransmit any electronic files, or any portion thereof, 
without including this disclaimer as part of any such 
transmissions.  In addition, Client agrees, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, to indemnify and hold harmless Olsson, its 
officers, directors, employees and sub consultants against any 
and all damages, liabilities, claims or costs, including 
reasonable attorney’s and expert witness fees and defense 
costs, arising from any changes made by anyone other than 



 

 

 
 Page 6 of 9  19-3868.01 

Olsson or from any reuse of the electronic files without the prior 
written consent of Olsson.  
 
7.3 Opinion of Probable Cost 
 
Since Olsson has no control over the cost of labor, materials, 
equipment or services furnished by others, or over the 
contractor(s)' methods of determining prices, or over competitive 
bidding or market conditions, Olsson's Opinion of Probable Cost 
provided for herein is made on the basis of Olsson's experience 
and qualifications and represent Olsson's best judgment as an 
experienced and qualified professional engineer, familiar with 
the construction industry. Client acknowledges and agrees that 
Olsson cannot and does not guarantee proposals or bids and 
that actual total Project(s) or construction costs may reasonably 
vary from Olsson’s Opinion of Probable Cost. If prior to the 
bidding or negotiating phase Client wishes greater assurance as 
to total Project(s) or construction costs, Client shall employ an 
independent cost estimator as provided in paragraph 3.4.3.  If 
Olsson’s Opinion of Probable Cost was performed in 
accordance with its standard of care and was reasonable under 
the total circumstances, any services performed by Olsson to 
modify the contract documents to bring the construction cost 
within any limitation established by Client will be considered 
Optional Additional Services and paid for as such by Client. If, 
however, Olsson’s Opinion of Probable Cost was not performed 
in accordance with its standard of care and was unreasonable 
under the total circumstances and the lowest negotiated bid for 
construction of the Project(s) unreasonably exceeds Olsson's 
Opinion of Probable Cost, Olsson shall modify its work as 
necessary to adjust the Project(s)’ size, and/or quality to 
reasonably comply with the Client’s budget at no additional cost 
to Client. Under such circumstances, Olsson’s modification of its 
work at no cost shall be the limit of Olsson’s responsibility with 
regard to any unreasonable Opinion of Probable Cost. 
 
7.4 Prevailing Wages 
 
It is Client's responsibility to determine whether the Project(s) is 
covered under any prevailing wage regulations. Unless Client 
specifically informs Olsson in writing that the Project(s) is a 
prevailing wage project and is identified as such in the Scope of 
Services, Client agrees to reimburse Olsson and to defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless Olsson from and against any 
liability, including costs, fines and attorneys' fees, resulting from 
a subsequent determination that the Project(s) was covered 
under any prevailing wage regulations. 
 
7.5 Samples 
 
All material testing samples shall remain the property of the 
Client. If appropriate, Olsson shall preserve samples obtained 
no longer than forty-five (45) days after the issuance of any 
document that includes the data obtained from those samples. 
After that date, Olsson may dispose of the samples or return 
them to Client at Client's cost. 
 
7.6 Standard of Care 
 
Olsson will strive to perform its services in a manner consistent 
with that level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members 
of Olsson’s profession providing similar services in the same 
locality under similar circumstances at the time Olsson’s 
services are performed. This Agreement creates no other 
representation, warranty or guarantee, express or implied. 
 

7.7 Force Majeure 
 
Any delay in the performance of any of the duties or obligations 
of either party hereto (except the payment of money) shall not 
be considered a breach of this Agreement and the time required 
for performance shall be extended for a period equal to the 
period of such delay, provided that such delay has been caused 
by or is the result of any acts of God, acts of the public enemy, 
insurrections, riots, embargoes, labor disputes, including strikes, 
lockouts, job actions, boycotts, fires, explosions, floods, 
shortages of material or energy, or other unforeseeable causes 
beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the 
party so affected. The affected party shall give prompt notice to 
the other party of such cause, and shall take promptly whatever 
reasonable steps are necessary to relieve the effect of such 
cause. 
 
7.8 Equal Employment Opportunity 
 

Olsson and any sub-consultant or subcontractor shall abide by 

the requirements of 41 CFR 60-1.4(a), 60-300.5(a) and 60-

741.5(a). These regulations prohibit discrimination against 

qualified individuals based on their status as protected veterans 

or individuals with disabilities, and prohibit discrimination against 

all individuals based on their race, color, religion, sex, sexual 

orientation, gender identity or national origin. Moreover, these 

regulations require that covered prime contractors and 

subcontractors take affirmative action to employ and advance in 

employment individuals without regard to race, color, religion, 

sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, national origin, disability 

or veteran status. 
 
7.9 Confidentiality 
 
In performing this Agreement, the parties may disclose to each 
other written, oral, electronic, graphic, machine-readable, 
tangible or intangible, non-public, confidential or proprietary data 
or information in any form or medium, including but not limited 
to: (1) information of a business, planning, marketing, 
conceptual, design, or technical nature;  (2) models, tools, 
hardware, software or source code; and (3) any documents, 
videos, photographs, audio files, data, studies, reports, 
flowcharts, works in progress, memoranda, notes, files or 
analyses that contain, summarize or are based upon any non-
public, proprietary or confidential information (hereafter referred 
to as the "Information").  The Information is not required to be 
marked as confidential.   
 
 7.9.1 Therefore, Olsson and Client agree that the 
party receiving Information from the other party to this 
Agreement (the “Receiving Party”) shall keep Information 
confidential and not use the Information in any manner other 
than in the performance of this Agreement without prior written 
approval of the party disclosing Information (the “Disclosing 
Party”) unless Client is a public entity and the release of 
Information is required by law or legal process. 
  
 7.9.2  Prior to the start of construction on the Project, 
the existence of discussions between the parties, the purpose 
of this Agreement, and this Agreement shall be considered 
Information subject to the confidentiality provisions of this 
Agreement.  
 
 7.9.3  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, 
the Receiving Party shall have no obligation to preserve the 
confidentiality of any Information which:  



 

 

 
 Page 7 of 9  19-3868.01 

  
7.9.3.1 was previously known to the Receiving 

Party free of any obligation to keep it confidential; or  
  

7.9.3.2  is or becomes publicly available by other 
than unauthorized disclosures; or  
  

7.9.3.3 is independently developed by the 
Receiving Party without a breach of this Agreement; or  

  
7.9.3.4  is disclosed to third parties by the 

Disclosing Party without restrictions; or  
  
7.9.3.5 is received from a third party not subject to 

any confidentiality obligations.  
  
 7.9.4 In the event that the Receiving Party is required 
by law or legal process to disclose any of Information of the 
Disclosing Party, the Receiving Party required to disclose such 
Information shall provide the Disclosing Party with prompt oral 
and written notice, unless notice is prohibited by law (in which 
case such notice shall be provided as early as may be legally 
permissible), of any such requirement so that the Disclosing 
Party may seek a protective order or other appropriate remedy. 
 
 7.9.5 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein 
(or to the contrary of any existing or future nondisclosure, 
confidentiality or similar agreement between the parties), Olsson 
is authorized, to use, display, reproduce, publish, transmit, and 
distribute Information (including, but not limited to, videos and 
photographs of the Project) on and in any and all formats and 
media (including, but not limited to, Olsson’s internet website) 
throughout the world and in all languages in connection with or 
in any manner relating to the marketing, advertising, selling, 
qualifying, proposing, commercializing, and promotion of Olsson 
and/or its services and business and in connection with any 
other lawful purpose of Olsson. In the event of any conflict or 
inconsistency between the provisions of this section and any 
other prior or future nondisclosure, confidentiality or similar 
agreement between the parties, the terms of this section shall 

take precedence.       
 
 7.9.6  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be 
construed as altering any rights that the Disclosing Party has in 
the Information exchanged with or disclosed to the Receiving 
Party, and upon request, the Receiving Party will return all 
Information received in tangible form to the Disclosing Party, or 
at the Receiving Party’s option, destroy all such Information. If 
the Receiving Party exercises its option to destroy the 
Information, the Receiving Party shall certify such destruction to 
the Disclosing Party.  
  
 7.9.7  The parties acknowledge that disclosure or use 
of Information in violation of this Agreement could cause 
irreparable harm for which monetary damages may be difficult 
to ascertain or constitute an inadequate remedy.  Each party 
therefore agrees that the Disclosing Party shall be entitled in 
addition to its other rights to seek injunctive relief for any 
violation of this Agreement.  
 
 7.9.8  The obligations of confidentiality set forth herein 
shall survive termination of this Agreement but shall only remain 
in effect for a period of one (1) year from the date the Information 
is first disclosed. 
 

7.10 Damage or Injury to Subterranean Structures or 
Utilities, Hazardous Materials, Pollution and Contamination 
 
 7.10.1 To the extent that work pursuant to this 
Agreement requires any sampling, boring, excavation, ditching 
or other disruption of the soil or subsurface at the Site, Olsson 
shall confer with Client prior to such activity and Client will be 
responsible for identifying, locating and marking, as necessary, 
any private subterranean structures or utilities and  Olsson shall 
be responsible for arranging investigation of public subterranean 
structures or utilities through an appropriate utility one-call 
provider. Thereafter, Olsson shall take all reasonable 
precautions to avoid damage or injury to subterranean 
structures or utilities which were identified by Client or the one-
call provider. Olsson shall not be responsible for any damage, 
liability or costs, for any property damage, injury or economic 
loss arising or allegedly arising from damages to subterranean 
structures or utilities caused by subsurface penetrations in 
locations approved by Client and/or the one call provider or not 
correctly shown on any plans, drawings or utility clearance 
provided to Olsson, except for damages caused by the 
negligence of Olsson in the use of such information. 
 
 7.10.2 It is understood and agreed that any assistance 
Olsson may provide Client in the disposal of waste materials 
shall not result in Olsson being deemed as a generator, 
arranger, transporter or disposer of hazardous materials or 
hazardous waste as defined under any law or regulation. Title to 
all samples and waste materials remains with Client, and at no 
time shall Olsson take title to the above material. Client may 
authorize Olsson to execute Hazardous Waste Manifest, Bill of 
Lading or other forms as agent of Client.  If Client requests 
Olsson to execute such documents as its agent, the Hazardous 
Waste Manifest, Bill of Lading or other similar documents shall 
be completed in the name of the Client. Client agrees to 
indemnify and hold Olsson harmless from any and all claims that 
Olsson is a generator, arranger, transporter, or disposer of 
hazardous waste as a result of any actions of Olsson, including, 
but not limited to, Olsson signing a Hazardous Waste Manifest, 
Bill of Lading or other form on behalf of Client. 
 
 7.10.3 At any time, Olsson can request in writing that 
Client remove samples, cuttings and hazardous substances 
generated by the Project(s) from the project site or other 
location.  Client shall promptly comply with such request, and 
pay and be responsible for the removal and lawful disposal of 
samples, cuttings and hazardous substances, unless other 
arrangements are mutually agreed upon in writing. 
 
 7.10.4 Client shall release Olsson of any liability for, 
and shall defend and indemnify Olsson against any and all 
claims, liability and expense resulting from operations under this 
Agreement  on account of injury to, destruction of, or loss or 
impairment of any property right in or to oil, gas, or other mineral 
substance or water, if at the time of the act or omission causing 
such injury, destruction, loss or impairment, said substance had 
not been reduced to physical possession above the surface of 
the earth, and for any loss or damage to any formation, strata, 
reservoir beneath the surface of the earth. 
 
 7.10.5 Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
contained herein, it is understood and agreed by and between 
Olsson and Client that the responsibility for pollution and 
contamination shall be as follows:  
 



 

 

 
 Page 8 of 9  19-3868.01 

7.10.5.1 Unless otherwise provided herein, Client 
shall assume all responsibility for, including control and removal 
of, and protect, defend and save harmless Olsson from and 
against all claims, demands and causes of action of every kind 
and character arising from pollution or contamination (including 
naturally occurring radioactive material) which originates above 
the surface of the land or water from spills of fuels, lubricants, 
motor oils, pipe dope, paints, solvents, ballast, bilge and 
garbage, except unavoidable pollution from reserve pits, wholly 
in Olsson’s possession and control and directly associated with 
Olsson’s equipment.   
 

7.10.5.2 In the event a third party commits an act or 
omission which results in pollution or contamination for which 
either Olsson or Client, for whom such party is performing work, 
is held to be legally liable, the responsibility therefore shall be 
considered as between Olsson and Client, to be the same as if 
the party for whom the work was performed had performed the 
same and all of the obligations regarding defense, indemnity, 
holding harmless and limitation of responsibility and liability, as 
set forth herein, shall be specifically applied. 

 
7.11 Controlling Law and Venue 
 
The parties agree that this Agreement and any legal actions 
concerning its validity, interpretation or performance shall be 
governed by the laws of the State of Nebraska.  It is further 
agreed that any legal action between the parties arising out of 
this Agreement or the performance of services shall be brought 
in a court of competent jurisdiction in Nebraska. 
 
7.12 Subconsultants 
 
Olsson may utilize as necessary in its discretion subconsultants 
and other subcontractors. Olsson will be paid for all services 
rendered by its subconsultants and other subconsultants as set 
forth in this Agreement. 
 
7.13 Assignment 
 
 7.13.1 Client and Olsson each are hereby bound and 
the partners, successors, executors, administrators and legal 
representatives of Client and Olsson (and to the extent 
permitted by paragraph 7.13.2 the assigns of Client and Olsson) 
are hereby bound to the other party to this Agreement and to the 
partners, successors, executors, administrators and legal 
representatives (and said assigns) of such other party, in 
respect of all covenants, agreements and obligations of this 
Agreement. 
 
 7.13.2 Neither Client nor Olsson shall assign, sublet or 
transfer any rights under or interest in (including, but without 
limitation, moneys that may become due or moneys that are 
due) this Agreement without the written consent of the other, 
except to the extent that any assignment, subletting or transfer 
is mandated by law or the effect of this limitation may be 
restricted by law. Unless specifically stated to the contrary in any 
written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or 
discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this 
Agreement. Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prevent 
Olsson from employing such subconsultants and other 
subcontractors as Olsson may deem appropriate to assist in the 
performance of services under this Agreement. 
 
 7.13.3 Nothing under this Agreement shall be 
construed to give any rights or benefits in this Agreement to 

anyone other than Client and Olsson, and all duties and 
responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be 
for the sole and exclusive benefit of Client and Olsson and not 
for the benefit of any other party. There are no third-party 
beneficiaries of this Agreement. 
 
7.14 Indemnity 
 
Olsson and Client mutually agree, to the fullest extent permitted 
by law, to indemnify and hold each other harmless from any and 
all damages, liabilities or costs, including reasonable attorneys’ 
fees and defense costs, relating to third party personal injury or 
third party property damage and arising from their own negligent 
acts, errors or omissions in the performance of their services 
under this Agreement, but only to the extent that each party is 
responsible for such damages, liabilities or costs on a 
comparative basis of fault. 
 
7.15 Limitation on Damages 
 
 7.15.1 Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, and to the fullest extent permitted by law, neither 
party’s individual employees, principals, officers or directors 
shall be subject to personal liability or damages arising out of or 
connected in any way to the Project(s) or to this Agreement. 
 
 7.15.2 Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, and to the fullest extent permitted by law, neither 
Client nor Olsson, their respective officers, directors, partners, 
employees, contractors or subconsultants shall be liable to the 
other or shall make any claim for any delay damages, any 
punitive damages or any incidental, indirect or consequential 
damages arising out of or connected in any way to the Project(s) 
or to this Agreement. This mutual waiver of delay damages and 
consequential damages shall include, but is not limited to, 
disruptions, accelerations, inefficiencies, increased construction 
costs, increased home office overhead, loss of use, loss of profit, 
loss of business, loss of income, loss of reputation or any other 
delay or consequential damages that either party may have 
incurred from any cause of action including, but not limited to, 
negligence, statutory violations, misrepresentation, fraud, 
deceptive trade practices, breach of fiduciary duties,  strict 
liability, breach of contract and/or breach of strict or implied 
warranty. Both the Client and Olsson shall require similar 
waivers of consequential damages protecting all the entities or 
persons named herein in all contracts and subcontracts with 
others involved in the Project(s). 
 
 7.15.3 Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, Client agrees that, to the fullest extent permitted by 
law, Olsson’s total liability to the Client for any and all injuries, 
claims, losses, expenses, damages, or claims expenses of any 
kind arising from any services provided by or through Olsson 
under this Agreement, shall not exceed the amount of Olsson’s 
fee earned under this Agreement.  Client acknowledges that 
such causes include, but are not limited to, negligence, statutory 
violations, misrepresentation, fraud, deceptive trade practices, 
breach of fiduciary duties, strict liability, breach of contract 
and/or breach of strict or implied warranty. This limitation of 
liability shall apply to all phases of Olsson’s services performed 
in connection with the Project(s), whether subsequent to or prior 
to the execution of this Agreement. 
 
7.16 Entire Agreement 
 



 

 

 
 Page 9 of 9  19-3868.01 

This Agreement supersedes all prior communications, 
understandings and agreements, whether oral or written.  
Amendments to this Agreement must be in writing and signed 
by the Client and Olsson. 
 
 
General  Provisions updated 04/15/2020. 
 

 

 



Page 1 of 7 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 

This exhibit is hereby attached to and made a part of the Letter Agreement for Professional 
Services dated March 10, 2020 between the City of Sapulpa, Oklahoma (“Client”) and Olsson, 
Inc. dba Ochsner Hare & Hare the Olsson Studio (“Olsson”) providing for professional services.  
Olsson’s Scope of Services for the Agreement is indicated below. 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION 
 
Project will be located at:  Sapulpa, Oklahoma 
 
Project Description:        Downtown Sapulpa Master Plan 
 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
Olsson shall provide the following services (Scope of Services) to Client for the Project: 
 

Phase 100 - Project Kickoff, Management, and Progress Meetings  
 
Olsson will provide Project management coordination, quality/cost control, information 
coordination, and Project schedules.  
 
Olsson will attend one (1) kickoff meeting in Sapulpa, Oklahoma, to define expectations 
and clarify Project goals. Olsson shall review Project scope, schedule, public 
engagement strategy, and stakeholder and technical committee responsibilities.  
 
Client shall coordinate formation of, outreach to, communication with, and management 
of stakeholder and technical committees. Client shall communicate Project information to 
the broader public, as required.  
 
Stakeholder committee shall include key property owners, business owners, and 
residents. The ideal size for the stakeholder committee is 30 to 40 people. The technical 
committee shall include City staff members and representatives from various agencies 
and departments. 
 
Deliverables: Project kickoff meeting materials  
 
Meetings: One (1) Project kickoff meeting in Sapulpa, Oklahoma 

 
 
Phase 200 – Branding and Discovery 
 
Olsson will prepare a branding plan that details logo, colors, fonts, and theming for 
Project, to be integrated into all print and digital materials, with guidance from Client. 
 
Olsson and Client shall establish Project boundary geographical limits prior to mapping. 
 
Client will provide Olsson with existing conditions data, including: 

• GIS data: 
o Parcels 
o City and downtown boundaries 
o Existing and future land use 



Page 2 of 7 

o Existing zoning 
o Special use districts and overlay zones 
o Utility locations/networks 
o Transportation networks (all modes) 
o Natural features, including floodplain/floodway, waterbodies, wetlands, 

open space, tree masses, greenways, et cetera 
o Public facilities, including fire and police stations, schools, libraries, et 

cetera  
o Planimetric data (pavement edges, sidewalks, parking lots, building 

footprints, et cetera) 
• Available economic development data (vacancy/occupancy rates, building 

permits awarded, et cetera) 
• Census and other relevant data for Project site, City of Sapulpa, and the larger 

market service area; specifically, demographics, housing, and economics  
 

Olsson will comprehensively map data to analyze downtown Sapulpa and trends to 
determine impacts on master planning.  
 
Visualization tools will map a wide range of data sets for downtown. Olsson will 
coordinate with City staff to collect and review all applicable plan documents and 
development regulations. Olsson shall review the following documents: 

• “Plan Sapulpa” Connecting to the Future: Sapulpa, Oklahoma 2030 
Comprehensive Plan (2014) 

• Zoning regulations 
• Subdivision regulations 

 
Olsson shall supplement data with one (1) field visit of Project site to analyze current 
conditions and take photographs. Photographic inventory will document quality and 
conditions of the built environment, development patterns, traffic and parking patterns, 
and downtown aesthetics and character. 

 
Economic Analysis and Market Positioning Strategy 
Olsson will conduct an economic analysis of Project site to formulate a “market 
positioning strategy”. Key economic analysis tasks include evaluating current and 
future economic and market factors; and conditions that influence existing and 
future business and development opportunities. 

 
Olsson shall provide the following in the economic analysis: 

• Primary market area within Project site and other business/development 
site locations within the market area. 

• Demographic trends impacting downtown’s development potential. 
Olsson will gather the following demographic data for the primary market 
area, as defined by Olsson, for use in the study: 

o Population trends 
o Household income 
o Building permits 
o Employment growth rates 
o Household growth rates 

• Local real estate development patterns and growth trends that indicate 
market demand for a variety of uses within Project location. Olsson will 
gather development permit data for the study. 



Page 3 of 7 

• Uses for which there is (or will be) demonstrated demand which will seek 
development sites with attributes similar to those offered in Project 
location. 

• Project’s location in context of other areas and development trends and 
patterns previously identified within the primary market area. Olsson will 
gather the following data: 

o Competing retail/commercial centers 
o Competing employment centers 
o Competing residential centers 

• Other factors that may bear upon Project’s competitive position, including 
zoning, development standards, et cetera. 

• Economic analysis comparison of Project location with other sites to 
evaluate advantages and disadvantages. 

• Recommendations for how to competitively position Project area within its 
broader market area. 

• Forecast demand for commercial, office, residential, industrial, and mixed 
uses in Project area. 

• Market positioning strategy’s findings and recommendations to be 
integrated into the plan. 

 
Transportation and Parking Analysis 
Olsson will assemble available traffic volume counts (peak hour turning 
movements, if available) from existing sources, including Oklahoma Department 
of Transportation, City of Sapulpa, and/or Indian Nations Council of 
Governments. New traffic counts are not included in this Scope of Services. 
 
Olsson will assess existing transportation network on a qualitative basis using 
industry standards for overall capacity and performance. Olsson will summarize 
parking inventory for the Project area, including the number of spaces available 
on-street, off-street, and any parking restrictions. Ownership for off-street parking 
will also be documented. If available, parking usage and turnover rates will be 
documented. Detailed parking counts or turnover study are not included in this 
Scope of Services. Olsson assumes this information will be provided by Others 
(city staff members, business community, et cetera). 

 
Olsson will summarize existing employment (retail, office, restaurant, and other) 
and population by city block within Project area. Olsson assumes this information 
will be provided by Others (city staff members, business community, et cetera). 
 
Olsson will develop a parking model to estimate future development demands for 
available parking supply. 
 
Olsson will document trip generation and parking needs based on results of the 
economic analysis and market positioning strategy. This information will identify 
potential transportation and parking needs for new investments and 
development. 

 
Deliverables: Branding plan; draft of Section 1 - Introduction and Section 2 - Downtown 
Snapshot; and draft of Downtown Economic Analysis and Market Positioning Strategy 
 
Meetings: None 

 



Page 4 of 7 

 
Phase 300 - Marketing, Engagement, and Concept Planning 

 
Marketing 
Olsson will coordinate with Client for content and timing of up to four (4) press releases 
throughout the planning process. Client will be responsible for writing and distributing 
press releases to local media outlets.  

 
Olsson will create a postcard-size mailer for Client to send to all City residents. Mailer 
will include a Project overview, a link to the Project website, and list of ways to get 
involved. Client will be responsible for compiling the distribution list, printing and postage 
costs, and mailing the mailer. 

 
Client will coordinate with City’s existing social media platforms and the City’s website to 
encourage engagement in the planning process. Client will be responsible for drafting 
and posting Project-related content on the City’s website and social media accounts. 
Olsson will coordinate with Client on content and timing of website and social media 
posts. 
 
Online Engagement 
Olsson will prepare a dedicated Project website for Project information. This website will 
allow interested participants to view and provide feedback; and learn how to get involved 
in the planning process. Olsson will maintain website operations, updates, monitoring, 
and maintenance throughout the planning process; and will transfer all website 
operations and update authority to Client once planning process is complete.  
 
Olsson will work with Client to develop questions for a public survey to be integrated into 
the Project website. Survey will focus on high-level priorities; and Client shall advertise 
the survey through social media platforms, website, and press releases. 

 
In-Person Engagement 
Olsson will conduct a half-day visioning workshop for the Project stakeholder committee, 
technical committee, and Client. This workshop will develop an initial vision and set of 
Project guiding principles. Workshop will include facilitated small-group discussions and 
review sessions with the larger group. Olsson will organize a series of interactive 
exercises for participants. 
 
Following the visioning workshop, Olsson will review themes that emerged and prepare 
a summary, a vision statement, and guiding principles. 
 
Olsson will host a three (3)-day design charrette to develop future land uses, 
development/redevelopment opportunities, traffic flow and parking improvements, and 
streetscape/aesthetic enhancements. Olsson will prepare imagery, graphics, analysis 
mapping, and preliminary planning concepts for discussion and feedback. Based on 
reactions received, Olsson will explore planning and design solutions for the Project 
location, addressing land use, transportation, parking, sustainability, aesthetics, 
development and redevelopment, market, and economics. These solutions will be hand-
drawn.  

 
The charrette will include a series of stakeholder and technical committee progress 
sessions, preference and visioning exercises, and ongoing planning and design 
sessions. The charrette will include a public open house (public open house #1) for 
community members to view progress from the charrette and share feedback. 



Page 5 of 7 

 
Client shall provide a workshop meeting space and pay required reservation fees for the 
design charrette. Space requirements include: 

• Room shall accommodate at least 40 people 
• Ample blank wall space (no windows preferred) 
• Walls without art and other attached materials 
• Walls that painters’ tape may be affixed to 
• Layout tables that can be moved into various arrangements 
• Chairs for the tables 
• Electrical outlets 
• Wi-Fi 
• Secured at night so all materials can be left out on walls and tables 
• Allow Olsson access from, at a minimum, 7:30 AM to 6:00 PM 
• No other events scheduled to use space during the workshop at any time, day or 

night 
 
Following public open house #1, Olsson shall evaluate preferred concepts generated in 
the charrette and align with goals and objectives identified in the visioning workshop.  
 
Once a draft master plan has been reviewed by Client, Sapulpa Metropolitan Area 
Planning Commission, and the City Council; a second public open house (public open 
house #2) will be conducted by Olsson. Prior to public open house #2, but on the same 
day, Olsson will host a “first look” stakeholder and technical committee meeting. 
 
Open houses may be conducted in the same facility as the charrette, depending on size, 
availability, and accommodation. Olsson will coordinate with Client for open house space 
requirements. 

 
Deliverables: Visioning workshop summary; Project website with integrated survey; one 
(1) postcard mailer; and draft of Section 3 - Community Engagement 
 
Meetings: One (1) visioning workshop; one (1) design charrette; two (2) public open 
houses; and one (1) stakeholder and technical committee meeting 

 
 
Phase 400 - Plan Development 
 
Olsson will create a series of actionable recommendations and implementation 
strategies. The plan will address land use, development/redevelopment, transportation 
flow, parking improvements, green space, sustainability, natural features, streetscape 
enhancements, and economic development.  
 
Plan document will be illustrative, including annotated plan graphics and photographic 
imagery. 
 
Deliverables: Draft of recommendations sections 
 
Meetings: None 

 
 



Page 6 of 7 

Phase 500 - Plan Refinement 
 
Client will provide a single PDF document of comments for draft recommendations to be 
addressed. Olsson will submit a revised draft plan for use at one (1) work session with 
Sapulpa Metropolitan Area Planning Commission and one (1) work session with City 
Council. Client will present the draft plan at each work session and send a single PDF 
document of comments to be addressed on draft recommendations.  
 
Following two work sessions, Olsson will revise the draft plan and prepare materials for 
the public open house #2, as previously described. 
 
Following public open house #2, Olsson will virtually meet with Client to discuss received 
comments and determine a final list of revisions to be incorporated into the draft plan. 
 
Olsson will draft the final section – implementation strategies – and submit to Client for 
review. Olsson will develop supporting implementation strategies for recommendations, 
including planning-level estimates of probable cost for transportation, parking, and 
streetscape improvements. Client will provide a single PDF document of comments for 
implementation strategies to be addressed. Olsson will submit a revised, complete, and 
final plan to be presented at a Sapulpa Metropolitan Area Planning Commission meeting 
and City Council meeting. Client will present the comprehensive plan at both formal 
commission meetings for approval and adoption. 
 
Deliverables: Draft of complete Downtown Sapulpa Master Plan in PDF file format; final 
version of complete Downtown Sapulpa Master Plan with appendices in PDF file format 
 
Meetings: One (1) virtual comment review meeting with Client 

 



Page 7 of 7 

ASSUMPTIONS 
 

• If Project Scope of Services or schedule change for any reason, Olsson will coordinate 
with Client to review and amend fees, as required, to align with revised scope and/or 
schedule.  

• All services shall be completed one (1) time only. Repetition of any tasks, beyond normal 
design/review processes, or as noted in the Scope of Services, shall be considered as 
additional services.  

• Existing employment and population by block within the Project area will be provided by 
Others 

 
 
EXCLUSIONS 
 
The following services are not included in this Scope of Services but can be provided by Olsson 
under a separate Agreement, if requested:  

• Detailed parking counts or turnover study 
• Hard copies of Downtown Sapulpa Master Plan  
• Construction drawings  
• As-built drawings/certifications 
• Field and construction services, including construction staking, testing, and observation 
• Permit fees 
• Project-related permitting  
• Easement legal descriptions and exhibits  

 
 
 
Should Client request work in addition to the Scope of Services, Olsson shall invoice Client for 
such additional services (Optional Additional Services) at the standard hourly billing labor rate 
charged for those employees actually performing the work, plus reimbursable expenses if any.  
Olsson shall not commence work on Optional Additional Services without Client’s prior written 
approval. 
  
Olsson agrees to provide all of its services in a timely, competent and professional manner, in 
accordance with applicable standards of care, for projects of similar geographic location, quality 
and scope. 
 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM

   
    Administration    11. G.        

City Council Regular
Meeting Date: April 20, 2020  
Submitted By: Mark Stephens, Inspection Division Supervisor
Department: Building Inspections & Safety
Presented By: Mark Stephens

SUBJECT:
Discussion and possible action regarding modified Agreement with ESRI to expand the City's
current licensing to provide ArcGIS Mapping for the City of Sapulpa at an additive cost amount
of $4,030.00.

BACKGROUND:
Currently, the City has contracted licenses with ESRI for the Urban Development Department and
Sapulpa Police/Fire to provide ArcGIS software and support.  We also contract with another
vendor to provide Online mapping to several other departments within the City under the Storm
Water Management Department.  We have negotiated with ESRI to expand and enhance our
existing contract by moving to the Small Government licensing platform.  This will increase our
annual expense to ESRI by $4,000 but will allow unlimited desktop licenses and 100 field licenses
without impacting any existing systems.  This also eliminates the secondary vendor requirement
that had an annual cost of over $20,000.  This is a 3-year contract commitment  but only if the
Council elects to appropriate funding in subsequent fiscal years.

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommendation Council approve Agreement.

Fiscal Impact

Amount: $4,030.00
To be paid from: Stormwater Management Fund
Account number: 29-529-354

Attachments
Agreement





 
 
 
 

380 New York Street     909.793.2853    esri.com 
Redlands, California 92373-8100 USA   info@esri.com 

 
March 16, 2020  
  
Mark Stephens 
City of Sapulpa 
425 E Dewey St 
Sapulpa, OK 74067  
   
Dear Mark,  
  
The Esri Small Municipal and County Government Enterprise Agreement (SGEA) is a three-year agreement that 
will grant your organization access to Esri term license software. The EA will be effective on the date executed and 
will require a firm, three-year commitment.  
  
Based on Esri's work with several organizations similar to yours, we know there is significant potential to apply 
Geographic Information System (GIS) technology in many operational and technical areas within your 
organization. For this reason, we believe that your organization will greatly benefit from an Enterprise Agreement 
(EA).  
  
An EA will provide your organization with numerous benefits including:  
  
 A lower cost per unit for licensed software  
 Substantially reduced administrative and procurement expenses  
 Complete flexibility to deploy software products when and where needed  

  
The following business terms and conditions will apply:  
  
 All current departments, employees, and in-house contractors of the organization will be eligible to use 

the software and services included in the EA.  
  
 If your organization wishes to acquire and/or maintain any Esri software during the term of the agreement 

that is not included in the EA, it may do so separately at the Esri pricing that is generally available for 
your organization for software and maintenance.  
 

 The organization will establish a single point of contact for orders and deliveries and will be responsible 
for redistribution to eligible users.  
 

 The organization will establish a Tier 1 support center to field calls from internal users of Esri software. 
The organization may designate individuals as specified in the EA who may directly contact Esri for Tier 
2 technical support.  

 
 The organization will provide an annual report of installed Esri software to Esri.  

 
 Esri software and updates that the organization is licensed to use will be automatically available for 

downloading.  
 

 The fee and benefits offered in this EA proposal are contingent upon your acceptance of Esri’s Small 
Municipal and County Government EA terms and conditions.  



Small Government Enterprise Agreement 
 

 Licenses are valid for the term of the EA.  
  

This program offer is valid for 90 days. To complete the agreement within this time frame, please contact me 
within the next seven days to work through any questions or concerns you may have.   
 
To expedite your acceptance of this EA offer:  

  
1. Sign and return the EA contract with a Purchase Order or issue a Purchase Order that references this EA 

Quotation and includes the following statement on the face of the Purchase Order:  
 
"THIS PURCHASE ORDER IS GOVERNED BY THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE ESRI 
SMALL MUNICIPAL AND COUNTY GOVERNMENT EA, AND ADDITIONAL TERMS AND 
CONDITIONS IN THIS PURCHASE ORDER WILL NOT APPLY."   
 
Have it signed by an authorized representative of the organization.  
  

2. On the first page of the EA, identify the central point of contact/agreement administrator. The agreement 
administrator is the party that will be the contact for management of the software, administration issues, 
and general operations. Information should include name, title (if applicable), address, phone number, and 
e-mail address.  
  

3. In the purchase order, identify the "Ship to" and "Bill to" information for your organization.  
  

4. Send the purchase order and agreement to the address, email or fax noted below:  
  
Esri  
Attn: Customer Service SG-EA  
380 New York Street  
Redlands, CA 92373-8100  

e-mail: service@esri.com  
fax documents to: 909-307-3083  

  
I appreciate the opportunity to present you with this proposal, and I believe it will bring great benefits to your 
organization.  

  
Thank you very much for your consideration.  

Best Regards,  

Sean Gill 
 



 Quotation # Q-410695
 
Date: March 16, 2020

Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc.
380 New York St
Redlands, CA 92373-8100
Phone: (909) 793-2853       Fax: (909) 307-3049
DUNS Number: 06-313-4175    CAGE Code: 0AMS3

 Customer # 265504      Contract #
 
City of Sapulpa
Urban Development Dept
425 E Dewey St
Sapulpa, OK 74067

   
To expedite your order, please attach a copy of  ATTENTION: Mark Stephens
this quotation to your purchase order.  PHONE: (918) 248-5909
Quote is valid from: 3/16/2020  To: 6/14/2020  EMAIL: mstephens@cityofsapulpa.net

 

Material Qty Term Unit Price Total

168177 1 Year 1 $4,030.00 $4,030.00

Populations of 0 to 25,000 Small Government Term Enterprise License Agreement

Year 1 to conclude on 10/31/20

168177 1 Year 2 $27,500.00 $27,500.00

Populations of 0 to 25,000 Small Government Term Enterprise License Agreement

11/1/20 - 10/31/21

168177 1 Year 3 $27,500.00 $27,500.00

Populations of 0 to 25,000 Small Government Term Enterprise License Agreement

11/1/21 - 10/31/22

 
Esri may charge a fee to cover expenses related to any customer requirement to use a proprietary vendor management, procurement, or invoice program.

For questions contact:
Sean Gill

Email:
s.gill@esri.com

Phone:
(909) 793-2853 x8828

The items on this quotation are subject to and governed by the terms of this quotation, the most current product specific scope of use document
found at  https://assets.esri.com/content/dam/esrisites/media/legal/product-specific-terms-of-use/e300.pdf, and your applicable signed agreement
with Esri. If no such agreement covers any item quoted, then Esri’s standard terms and conditions found at https://go.esri.com/MAPS apply to your
purchase of that item. Federal government entities and government prime contractors authorized under FAR 51.1 may purchase under the terms of
Esri’s GSA Federal Supply Schedule. Supplemental terms and conditions found at https://www.esri.com/en-us/legal/terms/state-supplemental apply
to some state and local government purchases. All terms of this quotation will be incorporated into and become part of any additional agreement
regarding Esri’s offerings. Acceptance of this quotation is limited to the terms of this quotation. Esri objects to and expressly rejects any different
or additional terms contained in any purchase order, offer, or confirmation sent to or to be sent by buyer. Unless prohibited by law, the quotation
information is confidential and may not be copied or released other than for the express purpose of system selection and purchase/license. The
information may not be given to outside parties or used for any other purpose without consent from Esri. Delivery is FOB Origin.

GILLS This offer is limited to the terms and conditions incorporated and attached herein.  



 Quotation # Q-410695
 
Date: March 16, 2020

Environmental Systems Research Institute, Inc.
380 New York St
Redlands, CA 92373-8100
Phone: (909) 793-2853       Fax: (909) 307-3049
DUNS Number: 06-313-4175    CAGE Code: 0AMS3

 Customer # 265504      Contract #
 
City of Sapulpa
Urban Development Dept
425 E Dewey St
Sapulpa, OK 74067

   
To expedite your order, please attach a copy of  ATTENTION: Mark Stephens
this quotation to your purchase order.  PHONE: (918) 248-5909
Quote is valid from: 3/16/2020  To: 6/14/2020  EMAIL: mstephens@cityofsapulpa.net

 

 Subtotal: $59,030.00  

Sales Tax: $0.00  

Estimated Shipping and Handling (2 Day Delivery): $0.00  

Contract Price Adjust: $0.00  

 Total: $59,030.00  

 
 
 
 

 
Esri may charge a fee to cover expenses related to any customer requirement to use a proprietary vendor management, procurement, or invoice program.

For questions contact:
Sean Gill

Email:
s.gill@esri.com

Phone:
(909) 793-2853 x8828

The items on this quotation are subject to and governed by the terms of this quotation, the most current product specific scope of use document
found at  https://assets.esri.com/content/dam/esrisites/media/legal/product-specific-terms-of-use/e300.pdf, and your applicable signed agreement
with Esri. If no such agreement covers any item quoted, then Esri’s standard terms and conditions found at https://go.esri.com/MAPS apply to your
purchase of that item. Federal government entities and government prime contractors authorized under FAR 51.1 may purchase under the terms of
Esri’s GSA Federal Supply Schedule. Supplemental terms and conditions found at https://www.esri.com/en-us/legal/terms/state-supplemental apply
to some state and local government purchases. All terms of this quotation will be incorporated into and become part of any additional agreement
regarding Esri’s offerings. Acceptance of this quotation is limited to the terms of this quotation. Esri objects to and expressly rejects any different
or additional terms contained in any purchase order, offer, or confirmation sent to or to be sent by buyer. Unless prohibited by law, the quotation
information is confidential and may not be copied or released other than for the express purpose of system selection and purchase/license. The
information may not be given to outside parties or used for any other purpose without consent from Esri. Delivery is FOB Origin.

GILLS This offer is limited to the terms and conditions incorporated and attached herein.  



Esri Use Only: 
Cust. Name   
Cust. #   
PO #   
Esri Agreement #   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
      

Page 1 of 6 February 1, 2020 
      

 
 
 
 

 

SMALL ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT 
COUNTY AND MUNICIPALITY GOVERNMENT 

(E214-1) 
 
This Agreement is by and between the organization identified in the Quotation ("Customer") and Environmental 
Systems Research Institute, Inc. ("Esri"). 
 
This Agreement sets forth the terms for Customer's use of Products and incorporates by reference (i) the 
Quotation and (ii) the Master Agreement. Should there be any conflict between the terms and conditions of the 
documents that comprise this Agreement, the order of precedence for the documents shall be as follows: (i) the 
Quotation, (ii) this Agreement, and (iii) the Master Agreement. This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the state in which Customer is located without reference to conflict of 
laws principles, and the United States of America federal law shall govern in matters of intellectual property. The 
modifications and additional rights granted in this Agreement apply only to the Products listed in Table A. 
 

Table A 
List of Products 

 
Uncapped Quantities 
Desktop Software and Extensions (Single Use) 
ArcGIS Desktop Advanced 
ArcGIS Desktop Standard 
ArcGIS Desktop Basic 
ArcGIS Desktop Extensions: ArcGIS 3D Analyst, 
ArcGIS Spatial Analyst, ArcGIS Geostatistical 
Analyst, ArcGIS Publisher, ArcGIS Network 
Analyst, ArcGIS Schematics, ArcGIS Workflow 
Manager, ArcGIS Data Reviewer 
 
Enterprise Software and Extensions 
ArcGIS Enterprise and Workgroup 
(Advanced and Standard) 
ArcGIS Enterprise Extensions: ArcGIS 3D Analyst, 
ArcGIS Spatial Analyst, ArcGIS Geostatistical 
Analyst, ArcGIS Network Analyst, ArcGIS 
Schematics, ArcGIS Workflow Manager 
 
ArcGIS Monitor 
 
Enterprise Additional Capability Servers 
ArcGIS Image Server 

Developer Tools 
ArcGIS Engine 
ArcGIS Engine Extensions: ArcGIS 3D Analyst, 
ArcGIS Spatial Analyst, ArcGIS Engine Geodatabase 
Update, ArcGIS Network Analyst, ArcGIS Schematics 
ArcGIS Runtime (Standard) 
ArcGIS Runtime Analysis Extension  
 
Limited Quantities 
One (1) Professional subscription to ArcGIS Developer 
Two (2) Esri CityEngine Single Use Licenses 
50 ArcGIS Online Viewers 
50 ArcGIS Online Creators 
10,000 ArcGIS Online Service Credits 
50 ArcGIS Enterprise Creators 
2 Insights in ArcGIS Enterprise 
2 Insights in ArcGIS Online 
5 Tracker for ArcGIS Enterprise 
5 Tracker for ArcGIS Online 
2 ArcGIS Parcel Fabric User Type Extensions (Enterprise) 
2 ArcGIS Utility Network User Type Extensions (Enterprise) 

 
OTHER BENEFITS 

 

Number of Esri User Conference registrations provided annually 2 

Number of Tier 1 Help Desk individuals authorized to call Esri 2 

Maximum number of sets of backup media, if requested* 2 

Self-Paced e-Learning Uncapped 

Five percent (5%) discount on all individual commercially available instructor-led training classes at Esri 
facilities purchased outside this Agreement 

*Additional sets of backup media may be purchased for a fee 
 



 

 

 
 

 
      

Page 2 of 6 February 1, 2020 
      

 
 
 
 

 

Customer may accept this Agreement by signing and returning the whole Agreement with (i) the Quotation 
attached, (ii) a purchase order, or (iii) another document that matches the Quotation and references this 
Agreement ("Ordering Document"). ADDITIONAL OR CONFLICTING TERMS IN CUSTOMER'S PURCHASE 
ORDER OR OTHER DOCUMENT WILL NOT APPLY, AND THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT WILL 
GOVERN. This Agreement is effective as of the date of Esri's receipt of an Ordering Document, unless otherwise 
agreed to by the parties ("Effective Date"). 
 
Term of Agreement: Three (3) years   
 
This Agreement supersedes any previous agreements, proposals, presentations, understandings, and 
arrangements between the parties relating to the licensing of the Products. Except as provided in Article 4—
Product Updates, no modifications can be made to this Agreement. 
 
Accepted and Agreed: 
 
 
       
(Customer) 
 
By:   
 Authorized Signature 
 
Printed Name:        
 
Title:        
 
Date:        

 

 
 

CUSTOMER CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
Contact:        Telephone:        
 
Address:        Fax:        
 
City, State, Postal Code:        E-mail:        
 
Country:        
 
Quotation Number (if applicable):        



   

 

 
 

 
      

Page 3 of 6 February 1, 2020 
      

 
 
 
 

 

1.0—ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS 
 
In addition to the definitions provided in the Master 
Agreement, the following definitions apply to this 
Agreement: 
 
"Case" means a failure of the Software or Online 
Services to operate according to the Documentation 
where such failure substantially impacts operational 
or functional performance. 
 
"Deploy", "Deployed" and "Deployment" mean to 
redistribute and install the Products and related 
Authorization Codes within Customer's 
organization(s). 
 
"Fee" means the fee set forth in the Quotation. 
 
"Maintenance" means Tier 2 Support, Product 
updates, and Product patches provided to Customer 
during the Term of Agreement. 
 
"Master Agreement" means the applicable master 
agreement for Esri Products incorporated by this 
reference that is (i) found at 
https://www.esri.com/en-us/legal/terms/full-master-
agreement and available in the installation process 
requiring acceptance by electronic acknowledgment 
or (ii) a signed Esri master agreement or license 
agreement that supersedes such electronically 
acknowledged master agreement. 
 
"Product(s)" means the products identified in 
Table A—List of Products and any updates to the list 
Esri provides in writing. 
 
"Quotation" means the offer letter and quotation 
provided separately to Customer. 
 
"Technical Support" means the technical 
assistance for attempting resolution of a reported 
Case through error correction, patches, hot fixes, 
workarounds, replacement deliveries, or any other 
type of Product corrections or modifications. 
 
"Tier 1 Help Desk" means Customer's point of 
contact(s) to provide all Tier 1 Support within 
Customer's organization(s). 
 
"Tier 1 Support" means the Technical Support 
provided by the Tier 1 Help Desk. 
 
"Tier 2 Support" means the Esri Technical Support 
provided to the Tier 1 Help Desk when a Case 
cannot be resolved through Tier 1 Support. 
 

2.0—ADDITIONAL GRANT OF LICENSE 
 
2.1 Grant of License. Subject to the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement, Esri grants to 
Customer a personal, nonexclusive, 
nontransferable license solely to use, copy, and 
Deploy quantities of the Products listed in 
Table A—List of Products for the Term of 
Agreement (i) for the applicable Fee and (ii) in 
accordance with the Master Agreement. 

 
2.2 Consultant Access. Esri grants Customer the 

right to permit Customer's consultants or 
contractors to use the Products exclusively for 
Customer's benefit. Customer will be solely 
responsible for compliance by consultants and 
contractors with this Agreement and will ensure 
that the consultant or contractor discontinues 
use of Products upon completion of work for 
Customer. Access to or use of Products by 
consultants or contractors not exclusively for 
Customer's benefit is prohibited. Customer may 
not permit its consultants or contractors to install 
Software or Data on consultant, contractor, or 
third-party computers or remove Software or 
Data from Customer locations, except for the 
purpose of hosting the Software or Data on 
Contractor servers for the benefit of Customer. 

 
 

3.0—TERM, TERMINATION, AND EXPIRATION 
 
3.1 Term. This Agreement and all licenses 

hereunder will commence on the Effective Date 
and continue for the duration identified in the 
Term of Agreement, unless this Agreement is 
terminated earlier as provided herein. Customer 
is only authorized to use Products during the 
Term of Agreement. For an Agreement with a 
limited term, Esri does not grant Customer an 
indefinite or a perpetual license to Products. 

 
3.2 No Use upon Agreement Expiration or 

Termination. All Product licenses, all 
Maintenance, and Esri User Conference 
registrations terminate upon expiration or 
termination of this Agreement. 

 
3.3 Termination for a Material Breach. Either party 

may terminate this Agreement for a material 
breach by the other party. The breaching party 
will have thirty (30) days from the date of written 
notice to cure any material breach. 

 
3.4 Termination for Lack of Funds. For an 

Agreement with government or government-
owned entities, either party may terminate this 
Agreement before any subsequent year if 



   

 

 
 

 
      

Page 4 of 6 February 1, 2020      

 
 
 

 

Customer is unable to secure funding through 
the legislative or governing body's approval 
process. 

 
3.5 Follow-on Term. If the parties enter into 

another agreement substantially similar to this 
Agreement for an additional term, the effective 
date of the follow-on agreement will be the day 
after the expiration date of this Agreement. 

 
 

4.0—PRODUCT UPDATES 
 
4.1 Future Updates. Esri reserves the right to 

update the list of Products in Table A—List of 
Products by providing written notice to 
Customer. Customer may continue to use all 
Products that have been Deployed, but support 
and upgrades for deleted items may not be 
available. As new Products are incorporated into 
the standard program, they will be offered to 
Customer via written notice for incorporation into 
the Products schedule at no additional charge. 
Customer's use of new or updated Products 
requires Customer to adhere to applicable 
additional or revised terms and conditions in the 
Master Agreement. 

 
4.2 Product Life Cycle. During the Term of 

Agreement, some Products may be retired or 
may no longer be available to Deploy in the 
identified quantities. Maintenance will be subject 
to the individual Product Life Cycle Support 
Status and Product Life Cycle Support Policy, 
which can be found at 
https://support.esri.com/en/other-
resources/product-life-cycle. Updates for 
Products in the mature and retired phases may 
not be available. Customer may continue to use 
Products already Deployed, but Customer will 
not be able to Deploy retired Products. 

 
 

5.0—MAINTENANCE 
 
The Fee includes standard maintenance benefits 
during the Term of Agreement as specified in the 
most current applicable Esri Maintenance and 
Support Program document (found at 
https://www.esri.com/en-
us/legal/terms/maintenance). At Esri's sole 
discretion, Esri may make patches, hot fixes, or 
updates available for download. No Software other 
than the defined Products will receive Maintenance. 
Customer may acquire maintenance for other 
Software outside this Agreement. 
 

a. Tier 1 Support 
 

1. Customer will provide Tier 1 Support 
through the Tier 1 Help Desk to all 
Customer's authorized users. 

 
2. The Tier 1 Help Desk will be fully trained in 

the Products. 
 

3. At a minimum, Tier 1 Support will include 
those activities that assist the user in 
resolving how-to and operational questions 
as well as questions on installation and 
troubleshooting procedures. 

 
4. The Tier 1 Help Desk will be the initial point 

of contact for all questions and reporting of a 
Case. The Tier 1 Help Desk will obtain a full 
description of each reported Case and the 
system configuration from the user. This 
may include obtaining any customizations, 
code samples, or data involved in the Case. 

 
5. If the Tier 1 Help Desk cannot resolve the 

Case, an authorized Tier 1 Help Desk 
individual may contact Tier 2 Support. The 
Tier 1 Help Desk will provide support in such 
a way as to minimize repeat calls and make 
solutions to problems available to 
Customer’s organization. 

 
6. Tier 1 Help Desk individuals are the only 

individuals authorized to contact Tier 2 
Support. Customer may change the Tier 1 
Help Desk individuals by written notice to 
Esri. 

 
b. Tier 2 Support 
 

1. Tier 2 Support will log the calls received 
from Tier 1 Help Desk. 

 

2. Tier 2 Support will review all information 
collected by and received from the Tier 1 
Help Desk including preliminary documented 
troubleshooting provided by the Tier 1 Help 
Desk when Tier 2 Support is required. 

 

3. Tier 2 Support may request that Tier 1 Help 
Desk individuals provide verification of 
information, additional information, or 
answers to additional questions to 
supplement any preliminary information 
gathering or troubleshooting performed by 
Tier 1 Help Desk. 

 

4. Tier 2 Support will attempt to resolve the 
Case submitted by Tier 1 Help Desk. 

 



   

 

 
 

 
      

Page 5 of 6 February 1, 2020      

 
 
 

 

5. When the Case is resolved, Tier 2 Support 
will communicate the information to Tier 1 
Help Desk, and Tier 1 Help Desk will 
disseminate the resolution to the user(s). 

 
 

6.0—ENDORSEMENT AND PUBLICITY 
 
This Agreement will not be construed or interpreted 
as an exclusive dealings agreement or Customer's 
endorsement of Products. Either party may publicize 
the existence of this Agreement. 
 
 

7.0—ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 
 
7.1 OEM Licenses. Under Esri's OEM or Solution 

OEM programs, OEM partners are authorized to 
embed or bundle portions of Esri products and 
services with their application or service. OEM 
partners' business model, licensing terms and 
conditions, and pricing are independent of this 
Agreement. Customer will not seek any discount 
from the OEM partner or Esri based on the 
availability of Products under this Agreement. 
Customer will not decouple Esri products or 
services from the OEM partners' application or 
service. 

 
7.2 Annual Report of Deployments. At each 

anniversary date and ninety (90) calendar days 
prior to the expiration of this Agreement, 
Customer will provide Esri with a written report 
detailing all Deployments. Upon request, 
Customer will provide records sufficient to verify 
the accuracy of the annual report. 

 
 

8.0—ORDERING, ADMINISTRATIVE 

PROCEDURES, DELIVERY, AND 

DEPLOYMENT 
 
8.1 Orders, Delivery, and Deployment 
 
a. Upon the Effective Date, Esri will invoice 

Customer and provide Authorization Codes to 
activate the nondestructive copy protection 
program that enables Customer to download, 
operate, or allow access to the Products. If this 
is a multi-year Agreement, Esri may invoice the 
Fee up to thirty (30) calendar days before the 
annual anniversary date for each year. 

 
b. Undisputed invoices will be due and payable 

within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of 
invoice. Esri reserves the right to suspend 
Customer's access to and use of Products if 

Customer fails to pay any undisputed amount 
owed on or before its due date. Esri may charge 
Customer interest at a monthly rate equal to the 
lesser of one percent (1.0%) per month or the 
maximum rate permitted by applicable law on 
any overdue fees plus all expenses of collection 
for any overdue balance that remains unpaid 
ten (10) days after Esri has notified Customer of 
the past-due balance.  

 
c. Esri's federal ID number is 95-2775-732. 
 
d. If requested, Esri will ship backup media to the 

ship-to address identified on the Ordering 
Document, FOB Destination, with shipping 
charges prepaid. Customer acknowledges that 
should sales or use taxes become due as a 
result of any shipments of tangible media, Esri 
has a right to invoice and Customer will pay any 
such sales or use tax associated with the receipt 
of tangible media. 

 
8.2 Order Requirements. Esri does not require 

Customer to issue a purchase order. Customer 
may submit a purchase order in accordance with 
its own process requirements, provided that if 
Customer issues a purchase order, Customer 
will submit its initial purchase order on the 
Effective Date. If this is a multi-year Agreement, 
Customer will submit subsequent purchase 
orders to Esri at least thirty (30) calendar days 
before the annual anniversary date for each 
year. 

 
a. All orders pertaining to this Agreement will be 

processed through Customer's centralized point 
of contact. 

 
b. The following information will be included in 

each Ordering Document: 
 

(1) Customer name; Esri customer number, if 
known; and bill-to and ship-to addresses 

(2) Order number 
(3) Applicable annual payment due 

 
 

9.0—MERGERS, ACQUISITIONS, OR 

DIVESTITURES 
 

If Customer is a commercial entity, Customer will 
notify Esri in writing in the event of (i) a 
consolidation, merger, or reorganization of Customer 
with or into another corporation or entity; 
(ii) Customer's acquisition of another entity; or (iii) a 
transfer or sale of all or part of Customer's 
organization (subsections i, ii, and iii, collectively 
referred to as "Ownership Change"). There will be 



   

 

 
 

 
      

Page 6 of 6 February 1, 2020      

 
 
 

 

no decrease in Fee as a result of any Ownership 
Change. 
 

9.1 If an Ownership Change increases the 
cumulative program count beyond the maximum 
level for this Agreement, Esri reserves the right 
to increase the Fee or terminate this Agreement 
and the parties will negotiate a new agreement. 

 

9.2 If an Ownership Change results in transfer or 
sale of a portion of Customer's organization, that 
portion of Customer's organization will transfer 
the Products to Customer or uninstall, remove, 
and destroy all copies of the Products. 

 

9.3 This Agreement may not be assigned to a 
successor entity as a result of an Ownership 
Change unless approved by Esri in writing in 
advance. If the assignment to the new entity is 
not approved, Customer will require any 
successor entity to uninstall, remove, and 
destroy the Products. This Agreement will 
terminate upon such Ownership Change. 

 



AGENDA ITEM

   
    Administration    11. H.        

City Council Regular
Meeting Date: April 20, 2020  
Submitted By: Pam Vann, Finance Director
Department: Finance
Presented By: Pam Vann

SUBJECT:
Discussion and possible action regarding a Disaster Assistance Agreement for Major Disasters
between the State of Oklahoma and the City of Sapulpa for disaster assistance resulting from
Oklahoma DR 4530 COVID-19 and authorize the Mayor Pro Tem to execute all necessary
documents.

BACKGROUND:
In order for the City to receive any funding from the Oklahoma Department of Emergency
Management for the DR 4530 COVID-19 disaster a formal agreement must be executed. 

RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of this agreement.

Attachments
Disaster Assistance Agreement-COVID 19














	Agenda
	_1558
	       ATT_minutes.04-06-2020 city
	_1559
	       ATT_minutes.04-02-2020 city emergency
	Consent Agenda__AP Claims for 4/20/2020
	       ATT_Claims List 4_20_2020
	Consent Agenda__Pre-Paid Claims for 4/20/2020
	       ATT_Pre-paid Claims 4_20_2020
	Administration__Stormwater Management Fund Budget Resolution-Reimbursements
	       ATT_Stormwater Management Fund Resolution-Reimbursement
	       ATT_Stormwater Management Fund budget adjustment
	Administration__Water and Sewer Improvements Sales Tax Fund Resolution
	       ATT_Water and Sewer Improvements Sales Tax Resolution-Reimbursements
	       ATT_Water and Sewer Improvement Sales Tax Fund budget adjustment
	Administration__letter of credit re 2020 $15m bonds
	Administration__GO Bond Construction Fund Resolution
	       ATT_GO Bond Construction Fund Resolution
	       ATT_Go Bond Construction Fund budget adjustment
	Administration__HVAC System
	       ATT_Bid Tabulations
	       ATT_Mechanical Service Company, dba Powers
	Administration__oschner hare & hare olsson downtown master plan agreement
	       ATT_Agreement
	Administration__Modification of ESRI Contract
	       ATT_Agreement
	Small Government Quote Cover Letter - Q-410695 - 20200316152555
	Q-410695

	Administration__State-Local Agreement for disaster assistance 
	       ATT_Disaster Assistance Agreement-COVID 19

